
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

Organizational Meeting 
 

January 14, 2020 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

 
 

1. Call to Order/Pledge 

 
2. Election of President, Vice President and Secretary 

 
3. Conflicts of Interest 

 
4. Resolution of the Board of School Trustees 

 
5. Adjournment 















ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

Resolution of the Board of School Trustees of 
Elkhart Community Schools 

 
 
Be it resolved that the following items are hereby approved by the Board of School Trustees of 
Elkhart Community Schools: 
 

1) The Treasurer of Elkhart Community Schools (ECS), IC 20-26-4(c), shall be Kevin 
Scott, effective appointment date to appointment date. 
 

2) The Deputy Treasurer of Elkhart Community Schools, IC 20-26-4(c), shall be Erica 
Purvis, effective appointment date to appointment date. 

 

3) The copy fee for records obtained through the Secretary to the Board of School 
Trustees of Elkhart Community Schools for the year of 2020 shall be ten (10) cents 
per page. 

 

4) The officers and members of the Board of Finance shall be the same as the officers 
and members of the Board of School Trustees with the ability for an alternate 

member to be named. 
 

5) The Board of School Trustees compensation for 2020 shall not exceed: $1,800.00 

per year IC 20-26-4-7 (1); and a per diem rate of $50.00 for other meetings per 
NEOLA 0144.1. 

 

6) The Cash Management Provider for 2020 shall be Lake City Bank. 
 

7) The ECS School Board shall appoint Barnes & Thornburg as Legal Counsel. 

 

8) The Elkhart Truth and Goshen News shall be designated for 2020 for the 
advertisement of legal Notices to the public. 

 

9) Mileage rate reimbursement shall be the IRS rate effective January 1, 2020 of $.575 
per mile. 

 

10) The Board approves the Bond amounts as follows: 
Corporation Treasurer   $200,000 
Deputy Treasurer      $25,000 

4 High School ECA Treasurers    $20,000 
5 High/Middle School Café Managers   $10,000 
5 other Treasurers      $10,000 

45 other ECA Treasurers       $5,000 
 
 

 



 
ADOPTED:  January 14, 2020 

 
 
 
________________________________ 

President 
 
 

________________________________ 
Vice President 
 

 
________________________________ 

Secretary 
 

 
 
________________________________ 

Member 
 
 

________________________________ 
Member 
 

 
________________________________ 

Member 
 
 

________________________________ 
Member 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 

______________________________________ 
Secretary, Board of School Trustees 



ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

Board of Finance Annual Meeting 
 

January 14, 2020 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Adoption of Resolution 
 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Finance does hereby authorize the 
Treasurer of the Elkhart Community Schools to invest funds from the 

depository balance instead of from a specific fund balance in 
accordance with the provisions established by Indiana Code 5-13-9-6. 

 

3. Review 2019 Investment History and Investment Policy as stipulated 
in I.C. 5-13-7-7. 

 
4. Financial Indicators 

 
5. Adjournment 



































- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

January 14, 2020 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Jan 14 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 14 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 14 7:00 p.m. Organizational Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 14 
Immediately 

following 
Finance Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 14 
Immediately 

following 
Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 28 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 28 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

 
B. THE ELKHART PROMISE 

 

C. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 
 

D. SUPERINTENDENT’S STUDENT ADVISORY COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES 

Memorial High School 
Central High School 

 

E. MINUTES 
December 17, 2019 – Business Meeting 

 

F. TREASURER'S REPORT 
 

 Consideration of Claims 

 
 Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 

appreciation of recent donations made to Elkhart Community Schools. 

 
 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 

school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 

 
G. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 Board Policy 3422.07S - Executive Assistants' Compensation Plan - The 
administration presents proposed revisions to Board Policy 3422.07S – 
Executive Assistants’ Compensation Plan and asks to waive 2nd reading. 



BOARD AGENDA January 14, 2020 
 
 

2 
   

 Board Policy Compensation - The administration presents proposed 
revisions to the following Board Policies and asks to waive 2nd reading: 

Board Policy 3422.06S - Secretarial/Business Compensation Plan 
Board Policy 3422.08S - Paraprofessionals' Compensation Plan 
Board Policy 3422.09S - Technical Assistants' Compensation Plan 

 
 2020-2021 School Calendar - The administration presents the 2020-2021 

School Calendar for initial consideration. 

 
 New Course Offerings – The administration presents new proposed course 

offerings for Board review. 

 
 Grant Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance of 

grants awarded to Elkhart Community Schools from the Elkhart Education 

Foundation (EEF). 
 

 Grant – The administration seeks Board approval for the submission of a 

grant as recommended by the administration. 
 

H. PERSONNEL 

 
 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 

administration. 
 

I. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 

 
 From Audience 

 

 From Superintendent and Staff 
 

 From Board 

 
J. ADJOURNMENT 

 



 
MINUTES 

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 

December 17, 2019 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 
8:00 a.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Douglas K. Weaver Babette S. Boling 

Present: Kellie L. Mullins Susan C. Daiber 
  Rodney J. Dale 
  Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr. 

   
Absent: Carolyn R. Morris  
   

 

Roll Call 

President Doug Weaver called the regular meeting of the Board of School 
Trustees to order. 
 

Call to 
Order 

Superintendent Steven Thalheimer recited the Elkhart Promise. 
 

The Elkhart 
Promise 

Mr. Weaver discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 
 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the minutes of the December 
10, 2019 Regular Board meeting. 

 

Approval of 
Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 
$7,231,795.40 as shown on the December 17, 2019, claims listing.  
(Codified File 1920-70) 

 

Payment of 
Claims 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 
donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS): $501 from Shree 

Ram LLC to purchase supplies for Memorial’s National Honor Society 
Champion’s Last Ride Winter Carnival; 250 straws of cattle semen from 
Cattle Visions of Clark, Missouri for educational purposes in the EACC 

agricultural program; and 60 hats and 62 scarves hand made by Ruth 
Ann Owens for distribution through social workers to children in need. 
 

Gift Acceptance 

The Board received a financial report distributed by Kevin Scott, chief 
financial officer, for the period January 1 – November 30, 2019, and 
found it to be in order. 

 

Financial Report 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted a Resolution to Transfer Funds 
to the Rainy Day Fund.  (Codified File 1920-71) 

 

Rainy Day Fund 
Resolution 



2 
 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted a Resolution to Transfer 
Amounts from Education Fund to the Operations Fund.  (Codified File 

1920-72) 
 

Transfer 
Resolution 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 

in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 
activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 
File 1920-73) 

 

Fundraisers 

 

Mr. Scott provided the current insurance update reporting claims were 
higher in November than November of 2018, but remain below overall 

compared to last year and significantly better than 2017. 
 

Insurance 
Update 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions to Board 

Policy 3413S – Support Staff Working Hours, Compensatory Time and 
Overtime, as presented at the December 10th regular meeting. 
 

Board Policy 

3413S 
 

By a vote of 5 to 1 (Boling voted nay), the Board amended the motion 
to waive 2nd reading of proposed revisions to Board Policy 3410.01A - 
Professional Staff Contracts and Compensation Plans (Administrators). 

 

Board Policy 
3410.01A 
 

By unanimous action, the Board appointed Susan Daiber as the Indiana 

School Board Legislative Liaison for 2020. 

ISBA 

Legislative 
Liaison 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an overnight trip request for 
the Central girls’ basketball team to travel to Edinburgh, IN on 12/27-
28, for basketball tournament at Columbus North High School. 

 

Overnight Trip 
Request 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 
accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 

administration on the December 17, 2019 listings.  (Codified File 1920-
74) 
 

Conference 
Leave Requests 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 
recommendations of the administration: 
 

Personnel 
Report 

Employment of the following two (2) certified staff members for the 
2019-2020 school year effective 1/6/20: 

Elizabeth Byler - grade 4 at Woodland 

Beth Davis - public safety at EACC  
 

Certified 
Employment 
 

Retirement of certified staff member, Trudi Alwine, special 

education at North Side, effective 1/31/20 with 31 years of service. 
 

Certified 

Retirement 
 

Resignation of the following two (2) certified staff members 

effective 12/31/19: 
Amanda Collier - grade 5 at Woodland 
Kristofer Gravender - language arts at Central 

 

Certified 

Resignations 



3 
 

Employment of the following six (6) classified employees having 
successfully completed their probationary period on dates 

indicated: 
Jennifer Bonney - bus helper at Transportation, 12/11/19 
Kami Brenneman - social worker at Osolo, 12/13/19 

Lynn Buckley - food service at Pinewood, 12/16/19 
Judie James-Hernandez - bus helper at Transportation, 

12/11/19 

Rocio Ortega - secretary at Bristol,12/16/19 
Allison Smith - social worker at Feeser, 12/16/19 
 

Classified 
Employment 

Retirement of the following two (2) classified employees effective 
12/20/19 with years of service in parenthesis: 

Carol Hoff, paraprofessional at Pierre Moran (11) 
Mellanie Miller, paraprofessional at Hawthorne (26) 
 

Classified 
Retirements 

 

Resignation of the following three (3) classified employees effective 
on dates indicated: 

Danette Freel, food service at Central, 12/13/19 

Alta Radelich, bus driver at Transportation, 12/20/19 
Beth Wentland, data and assessment manager at ECS, 

1/3/20 

 

Classified 
Resignations 
 

A family in the audience spoke regarding a policy change to the top ten 
recognition for early graduates of Memorial and the effect it is having on 

their student. 
 

From the 
Audience 

Dr. Thalheimer recognized efforts of staff and students assisting families 

in need. 
 

From the 

Superintendent 
 

Board President Doug Weaver thanked Board members for their work 
this year, thanked all staff for work moving forward, recognized strides 
with the diesel tech building and the Engineering, Technology and 

Innovation building.  Mr. Weaver also highlighted student achievements 
in the classroom and in sports. 
 

From the Board 

  



4 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 9:15 a.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Kellie L. Mullins, President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Carolyn R. Morris, Vice President 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr., Secretary 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Babette S. Boling, Member 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Susan C. Daiber, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

Signatures 

 



 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  January 7, 2020 

 

TO:  Dr. Steven Thalheimer 

  Board of School Trustees 

 

FROM: Frank Serge (Principal) 

  Ted Elli (Teacher) 

 

RE:  Donation Approval 

 

Elkhart Central High School received a donation of $500.00 from Dicor Corporation. The 

donation is in support of the ElkLogics Robotics and will be used to purchase equipment 

and other items in support of the club. 

 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and 

an appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 

Dicor Corporation 

2965 Lavanture Place 

Elkhart, IN 46514 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  December 20, 2019 
 
TO:  Dr. Steven Thalheimer 
  Board of School Trustees 
 
FROM:  Susan Ott 
 
RE:  Donation Approval 
 
The Irions Foundation has made a donation in the amount $100,000.00 to Elkhart Community Schools 
for the Engineering, Technology and Innovation building fund. 
 
I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that appropriate 
letter of acknowledgement be sent to: 
 
 Irions Foundation 
 2602 Marina Drive 
 Elkhart, IN  46514 









 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  December 20, 2019 

TO:  Dr. Thalheimer 
  Board of School Trustees 
 
FROM:  Kris Weimer, Principal 
 
RE:  Donation Approval 

Osolo Elementary School would like to publicly thank Safe Fleet Bus and Rail for their donation of 
$519.14 in cash, $100 in a Visa Gift Card and $300 in Martin’s Gift Cards towards our Angel Tree giving 
for students in need at our school. We are thankful for their generosity to our school and helping some 
of our families in need at this time of year. 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 
appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 Safe Fleet Bus and Rail 
319 Roske Drive  
Elkhart, IN 46516 



Proposed School Fundraising Activities
January 14, 2020, Meeting of Board of School Trustees

School/Organiz
ation Fundraising Activity Description/Purpose

Date(s) of 
Activity Date Submitted Sponsor(s)

Elkhart High 
Football

Fan Angel Ask- Online donations / kickstart 
funds for the merged football team 
activites/events technology, etc.

1/15/2020 - 
1/31/2020

1/8/2020 Josh Shattuck

Elkhart Central/ 
Speech and 
Debate

Valentine's Day Flower Grams / Pay for 
student memebrship dues and tournament 
costs & to defer student club costs. 

1/20/2020 - 
2/14/2020

1/8/2020 Janis Elli & Colleen DuBois

Eastwood / 
Emotional 
Disability 
Classroom

Donors Choose -Online donations / Project 
based learning materials, alt seating options, 
technology to better engage students

1/15/2020 - 1/9/2020 Chris Hipsher

Memorial / 
Student 
Government

Volleyball Tournament - Student teams from 
Memorial and other schools will be allowed 
to compete.

1/23/20 1/9/2020 Julie Tyrakowski & Darlene Ballard

Please note the following fundraisers are 
presented for confirmation only.

Memorial / 
Academic 
Competetion 
Teams and 
Student 
Activities

Previously approved apparel fundraiser from 
April 23, 2019, by the Board of School 
Trustees; due to an extremely busy winter 
season for the vendor, and subsequent lack 
of ability to invest in sales when origianlly 
planned, they are requesting to extend the 
date of the original fundraiser through June 
1, 2020. The previous deadline was 
12/20/2019. 

4/23/19 - 
6/1/2020

1/6/2020 Julie Tyrakowski

Origianl fundraiser request:  Memorial sprit 
wear will be sold during Freshman Showcase 
and through the year. Proceeds will be used 
for registeration fees for Spell, Chess and 
Academic Super Bowl as well as snacks and 
shirts for the groups. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Book Policy Manual

Section 3000 Personnel

Title Proposed Revised EXECUTIVE ASSISTANTS’ SALARY SCHEDULE

Code po3422.07S

Status

Adopted December 20, 2016

Last Revised December 10, 2019

Last Reviewed January 14, 2020

3422.07S - EXECUTIVE ASSISTANTS’ SALARY SCHEDULE
 
The Board of School Trustees hereby adopts the following wage schedule for Executive Assistant positions, effective January 1, 2020. In
addition, the three percent (3%) employee contribution to PERF will be paid by the Elkhart Community Schools.
 
Annual Base Salary Amount
 
Each year the Superintendent and/or his/her designee(s), and the Executive Assistants on this schedule shall meet and determine a
recommendation to the Board regarding the annual base salary and policy changes affecting these staff members. The year shall be January
1 to December 31.
 
Salary Factor Range and Review
 

A. Each Executive Assistant shall be assigned a salary factor range which shall serve as a range for salaries applicable to that given
position. This salary factor range is intended to reflect the actual degree of responsibility in a particular assignment, as well as the
expected minimal amount of time required to perform the responsibilities. Such salary factor range takes into account both qualitative
and quantitative aspects of a particular assignment.
 
Salary Factor Range* Assignment
 
  
.80 - .97 Executive Assistant to District Counsel/Chief of Staff
  
.80 - .97 Executive Assistant/Human Resources
  
.80 - .97 Executive Assistant/Student Services
  
.80 - .97 Executive Assistant/Instructional Leadership
  
* Apply factor to base amount of $56,555

Upon an individual's assignment as an Executive Assistant, the Director of Human Resources, with input from the Superintendent and
the staff member's immediate supervisor, shall:
 

1. determine "recognized" previous experience in the Elkhart
Community Schools.
 

2. determine the staff member’s placement on the salary factor range on the basis of previous experience in the Elkhart
Community Schools and other experience and training.
 

B. The placement on the salary factor range shall be reviewed annually by the immediate supervisor(s) of the Executive Assistant and
any recommendation for change shall be submitted to the Superintendent for review and a final decision regarding range placement.
 

C. Any Executive Assistant, acting in his or her own behalf, may appeal the established salary factor or the salary factor range. Such
appeal shall first be made to the staff member's immediate supervisor(s). If said appeal results in an unsatisfactory decision to the
appellant, then an appeal may be made to the Superintendent. The Superintendent's decision shall be final.

 
Performance Award
 



Executive Assistant’s will be eligible for an annual performance award up to $1,000. The performance award will be based upon the Executive
Assistant’s accomplishments in the performance of duties exceeding normal expectations. Administrators who supervise Executive Assistants
are to make a recommendation to the Superintendent for an award. All awards must be approved by the Superintendent prior to payment.
 
Insurance
 

A. Health
 
In addition to the basic salary schedule, the Elkhart Community Schools contributes toward a policy for each regular classified
employee, working thirty (30) or more hours per week, who is a member of the group hospitalization, major medical and life insurance
program approved by the Board of School Trustees. Eligible employees’ may select one of the plans provided by the Board.
 

B. Life
 
All Executive Assistants shall be provided a group term life insurance policy with a face value equal to the annual salary of each staff
member rounded up to the next thousand dollars multiplied by two. The Board will pay ninety percent (90%) of the annual cost of the
insurance.
 
The retiring Executive Assistants may participate in the group term life insurance policy through age seventy (70) (with the exception
that such coverage shall not include accidental death or dismemberment) in a face amount as indicated in the preceding paragraph by
paying one hundred percent of the group rate premium in excess of that provided in Section 4, Retirement Benefits, paragraph B, Life
Insurance.
 

C. Disability
 
All Executive Assistants who qualify shall be provided a long term disability insurance policy. Such policy will provide payment of not
less than sixty-six and two thirds (66 2/3) percent of salary after a waiting period of ninety (90) calendar days of disability. The Board
will pay ninety percent (90%) of the annual cost of the insurance.
 

D. Liability - Automobile

The employer shall provide primary liability insurance coverage for Executive Assistants who drive school corporation automobiles
while performing job duties and responsibilities and secondary liability insurance coverage for Executive Assistants who drive their
personal automobiles while performing job duties and responsibilities. Such secondary coverage will begin above the minimum liability
required by law or after the executive secretary's liability insurance limit has been reached, whichever is higher, and will extend to the
maximum limit of insurance carried by the corporation.
 

 
Definitions and Eligibility Requirements for Retirement, Severance, Disability and Death Benefits
 

A. Definitions
 

1. "Retirement" is defined as the mutually agreeable cessation of the employment relationship between an Executive Assistant
and Elkhart Community Schools by such individual who had made written application for PERF benefits.
 

2. "Severance" is defined as the mutually agreeable cessation of the employment relationship between an Executive Assistant and
Elkhart Community Schools.
 

B. Eligibility Requirements
 

1. Retirement
 
Any Executive Assistant who had ten (10) years or more of recognized service and has reached the age of fifty-five (55), or has
twenty (20) years or more of recognized service and has reached the age of fifty (50) years, and who is serving in such
capacity at the time of retirement, will be eligible for retirement benefits provided the following conditions are met:
 
The staff member shall notify his or her supervisor in writing of his or her intent to retire no later than twelve (12) months
before the effective date of such retirement. This notice may be waived by the Board.
 

2. Severance
 
Any Executive Assistant who has completed at least six (6) months of active employment with Elkhart Community Schools will
be eligible for severance benefits if he or she submits a written resignation to the Director of Human Resources which specifies
the last date of employment and which is delivered to the Director of Human Resources at least twenty (20) working days prior
to the last day of employment.
 

3. Disability or Death Prior to Age Fifty (50)
 



a. The staff member who becomes permanently disabled (physically or mentally) or dies prior to age fifty (50) and has
met the ten (10) year requirement shall be paid severance benefits under this policy. Benefits will be paid at the time of
disablement and in the case of death, benefits will be paid to the decedent’s estate or designated beneficiary.
 

b. Death - In addition to the severance benefits provided for in other sections of this policy, upon the death of the staff
member, their estate or designated beneficiary shall receive an amount equal to the number of days of accumulated
sick leave times the staff member’s daily salary.

The surviving unmarried dependent spouse of any Executive Assistant shall be entitled to participate in the basic group health
insurance program until eligible for Medicare by paying one hundred percent (100%) of the premium.

 
Retirement Benefits
 

A. Health Insurance
 
An Executive Assistant who retires from the Elkhart Community Schools and who satisfies the provisions of Section 3-B-1 of this policy
may use the amounts held in his/her separate VEBA account, established pursuant to applicable resolutions adopted by the Board of
School Trustees and this policy, to pay the full cost of health insurance offered by the Board to its employees provided the following
conditions are met:
 

1. Immediately following retirement, the Executive Assistant and spouse, if any, shall have the option of remaining in the
Corporation’s current group health insurance plan if all of the following conditions are met as of the date of severance and
thereafter
 

a. While the retired Executive Assistant and spouse, if any, remain enrolled in the health insurance plan, the retired
Executive Assistant and spouse shall pay the entire insurance premium applicable to the insurance coverage, with the
premium payment to be made monthly for each succeeding year.
 

b. Within ninety (90) days of the retirement date, the Executive Assistant has provided a written request to Elkhart
Community Schools for continuing insurance coverage for the Executive Assistant and spouse, if any.
 

2. When a retired Executive Assistant becomes eligible for Medicare, the Executive Assistant’s eligibility to continue to participate
in the Corporation’s group health insurance plan shall terminate, if not earlier terminated according to applicable law. (The
same termination of eligibility shall also apply when a retired Executive Assistant’s spouse first becomes eligible for Medicare.)
It is acknowledged that the parties intend these provisions to comply with the applicable Federal and state laws that establish
an eligible Executive Assistant’s right to continue health insurance for the Executive Assistant and spouse.
 

B. Life Insurance
 
The retiring staff member may participate in the group term life insurance policy through age seventy (70) (with the exception that
such coverage shall not include accidental death or dismemberment) in an amount equal to the life insurance, as per Section 2-I-B, by
paying 100% of the group rate premium for life insurance in excess of that provided in the following schedule:
 

1. Period through age sixty-five (65) - equal to last salary
 

2. Period age sixty-six (66) through seventy (70) - $10,000
 

3. Beyond age seventy-one (71) - 0
 

C. Additional Benefits
 

1. A  retiring executive assistant, who has worked in another classified group and was promoted to the position of executive
assistant, is eligible to receive retirement and severance benefits accrued prior to becoming an executive assistant;. however,
the total benefits paid shall not exceed the maximum benefits set forth in this policy.
 

2. A retiring executive assistant will be paid his/her daily rate multiplied times the number of years of service in the Elkhart
Community Schools.
 

3. A maximum of thirty-five (35) accumulated days of unused personal leave will be paid to an executive assistant who retires,
dies, or becomes totally permanently disabled while employed by Elkhart Community Schools. Vacation days earned in the
current year shall also be paid prior to retirement, or upon disability termination or death of the employee. In the event of
death, the above benefit shall be paid to the decedent's estate.
 

4. In addition to the above benefits, the actual number of days of accumulated sick leave, not to exceed a maximum of twelve
(12) days or forty-five percent (45%) of the accumulated sick leave days, whichever is greater, shall be paid to an
administrative assistant at the time of retirement, or the executive assistant's beneficiary in the event of the death of an
administrative assistant eligible for retirement.



 
Disability Benefits
 

A. Health Insurance
 

1. A disabled staff member who is not otherwise eligible for retirement or severance, who severs employment as a result of
his/her disability may participate in all or any part of the health insurance program (except long-term disability) until eligible
for Medicare at the same cost as for other Executive Assistants.
 

2. Any future increase in health insurance premiums as a result of this benefit until eligible for Medicare will be calculated annually
as a part of the staff member’s fringe benefits.
 

3. This benefit will be discontinued if the disabled staff member becomes employed on a full-time or calendar year basis, or if
through other employment qualifies for health insurance benefits. The Board reserves the right to request the employment
status of the disabled staff member.
 

B. Life Insurance
 
The disabled staff member may participate in the group term life insurance policy through age seventy (70) (with the exception that
such coverage shall not include accidental death and dismemberment) in an amount equal to the life insurance, as per Section 2-I-B,
by paying one hundred percent (100%) of the group rate premium for life insurance in excess of that provided in the following
schedule:
 

1. Period through age sixty-five (65) - equal to last salary
 

2. Period age sixty-six (66) through seventy (70) - $10,000
 

3. Age seventy-one (71) and beyond - 0
 

C. Financial Benefits
 
The staff member who qualifies for disability benefits will be given the following benefits:
 

1. Executive Assistants shall be compensated for 1) unused personal business days in the current year of employment, 2) unused
vacation days in the current year of employment, and 3) unused vacation days from the previous year of employment.
 

2. One-half percent (.5%) of the highest salary received times the number of years of recognized service in Elkhart Community
Schools prior to becoming an Executive Assistant, and
 

3. Two percent (2.0%) of the highest salary times the number of years employed as an Executive Assistant.

 
Death Benefits
 

A. Health Insurance
 
The surviving unmarried dependent spouse of any Executive Assistant shall be entitled to participate in the basic group health
insurance program until eligible for Medicare by paying one hundred percent (100%) of the premium.
 

B. Financial Benefits
 
The estate of the Executive Assistant who qualifies will be given the following benefits:
 

1. One-half percent (.5%) of the highest salary received times the number of years employed in the Elkhart Community Schools
prior to becoming an Executive Assistant, and;
 

2. Two percent (2.0%) of the highest salary times the number of years employed in an Executive Assistant. In addition, upon the
death of the Executive Assistant, the estate or designated beneficiary shall receive an amount equal to the number of days of
accumulated sick leave times the Executive Assistant’s daily salary.

 
VEBA (Voluntary Employee Benefit Account)
 

A. The Board of School Trustees has established a VEBA (Voluntary Employee Benefit Accounts) pursuant to § 501(c)(9) of the Internal
Revenue Code. An Executive Assistant must meet the requirements of Section 3-B-1 and retire from employment with Elkhart
Community Schools to be vested in the VEBA account.



 
B. Executive Assistants first employed by Elkhart Community Schools on or after August 1, 2006, or re-employed after a break in service,

shall be entitled to a contribution equal to one and a halftwo percent (1.52%) of each Executive Assistant’s salary. This one and a
halftwo percent (1.52%) contribution will be deposited into the VEBA account on a monthly basis as the base salary is paid.
 
The terms and conditions for the administration of said VEBA accounts shall be as follows:
 

1. The amount contributed for each Executive Assistant will be invested in a separate account. There will be no co-mingling of
accounts and each Executive Assistant may determine how his/her account shall be invested among the investment options
made available by the vendor for the VEBA.
 

2. Until such time that an Executive Assistant has retired and satisfied the eligibility requirements set forth in this policy, the
Executive Assistant shall have no access to the assets held in his/her separate VEBA account.
 

3. If an Administrator or Executive Assistant retires or otherwise terminates employment before satisfaction of the requirements
set forth in this policy, the terminated Administrator or Executive Assistant’s VEBA account shall be forfeited. Forfeited amounts
shall be reallocated at the end of each plan year only among the then remaining separate VEBA accounts. Therefore, the VEBA
accounts of the following Administrators and Executive Assistants will not share in the reallocation of a forfeiture of a VEBA
account:
 

a. Administrators and Executive Assistants who forfeited their VEBA accounts in the same year,
 

b. Administrators and Executive assistants who previously forfeited their VEBA accounts; and
 

c. Administrators and Executive Assistants who have attained the age of fifty-nine (59) and terminated employment in or
before the year of the reallocated forfeiture.

Furthermore, VEBA accounts of Administrators and Executive Assistants who have attained the age of fifty-nine (59) but who
have not terminated employment share in the reallocated forfeiture, but on a reduced actuarial basis.

4. Following retirement and the satisfaction of the requirements set forth in this policy, a retired Executive Assistant may use the
amounts held in his/her separate VEBA account, for example, to pay health insurance premiums, term life insurance premiums,
and to be reimbursed for unreimbursed medical expenses of the Executive Assistant, spouse, and dependents. Furthermore,
following the death of an Executive Assistant who had otherwise satisfied the requirements of this policy, any amounts
remaining in the deceased administrator’s VEBA account may continue to be used to pay these premiums and expenses of the
Executive Assistant’s spouse and dependents. At no time may the VEBA made loans to an employee, his/her spouse, or his/her
dependents.

C. Effective with the commencement of the 2006-2007 school year, the employer will contribute an amount equal to one and one-half
percent (1- 1/2%) of each Executive Assistant’s base salary annually into an individual VEBA account on behalf of each Executive
Assistant employed as of 1/1/2006. This annual one and one-half percent (1-1/2%) contribution will be deposited into the VEBA
account on a monthly basis as the base salary is paid.

D. In addition to the ongoing contributions described in paragraph C above, the Employer shall contribute to the VEBA account of each
Executive Assistant employed during the 2005-2006 school term an amount representing the present value of the retiree health
insurance benefits for Executive Assistants employed by Elkhart Community Schools as of
1/1/2006.
 
The terms and conditions for the administration of said VEBA accounts shall be as follows:

1. The amount calculated and/or contributed for each Executive Assistant will be invested in a separate account. There will be
no co-mingling of accounts and each administrator may determine how his/her account shall be invested among the
investment options made available by the vendor for the VEBA.

2. Until such time that an Executive Assistant has retired and satisfied the eligibility requirements set forth in this policy, the
employee shall have no access to the assets held in his/her separate VEBA account.

3. If an Administrator or Executive Assistant retires or otherwise terminates employment before satisfaction of the requirements
set forth in this policy, the terminated Administrator or Executive Assistant’s VEBA account shall be forfeited. Forfeited amounts
shall be reallocated at the end of each plan year only among the then remaining separate VEBA accounts. This reallocation shall
be in a manner similar to that used by the Educational Services Company in initially determining the present value calculations.
Therefore, the VEBA accounts of the following employees will not share in the reallocation of a forfeiture of a VEBA account.

a. Administrators and Executive Assistants, who forfeited their VEBA accounts in the same year,
b. Administrators and Executive Assistants who previously forfeited their VEBA accounts, and

 
c. Administrators and Executive Assistants who have attained the age of fifty-nine (59) and terminated employment in or

before the year of the reallocated forfeiture.

Furthermore, VEBA accounts of Administrators and Executive Assistants who have attained the age of fifty-nine (59) but who
have not terminated employment may share in the reallocated forfeiture, but on a reduced actuarial basis.

4. Following retirement and the satisfaction of the requirements set forth in this policy, a retired Executive Assistant may use the
amounts held in his/her separate VEBA account to pay, for example, health insurance premiums, term life insurance premiums,



and to be reimbursed for unreimbursed medical expenses of the Executive Assistant, spouse, and dependents. Furthermore,
following the death of an Executive Assistant who had otherwise satisfied the requirements of this policy, any amounts
remaining in the deceased employee’s VEBA account may continue to be used to pay these premiums and expenses of the
Executive Assistant’s spouse and dependents. At no time may the VEBA make loans to an Executive Assistant, his/her spouse,
or his/her dependents.

 
Physical Examination and Reports
 
Executive Assistants may undergo a complete physical examination on a schedule established by the Superintendent.
 
Absences
 
When unable to report for work, it is the employee’s responsibility to notify and give the reason for absence to his/her immediate supervisor
as soon as possible. This notice is to be given at least one-half (1/2) hour before the time that the employee regularly reports for work,
except for bus drivers, who should give at least one hour’s notice. Upon return to work, the employee shall file a report of absence.
Deductions for absence will be made at the daily rate unless covered by an available benefit.
 
All classified employees employed four (4) or more hours are entitled to certain illness and leave benefits. Absences for all classified
personnel in addition to the days to which they are entitled shall be considered to be unexcused, except those for which prior approval has
been granted. Any absence of an employee may, at the discretion of the employer, be subject to proper and sufficient verification satisfactory
to the employer. Three (3) days' unexcused absences in any one school year shall be considered excessive and shall be grounds for
suspension or termination. Upon written request received by the appropriate administrator, at least two (2) weeks in advance (except in
emergencies), unpaid absences of five or less consecutive working days may be approved. The best interests of the school corporation will be
considered.
 
Illness Absence and Leaves
 
Personal/Family Illness Absence
 
Executive Assistants will be allowed the number of hours equal to one (1) workday per month of employment for personal illness/family
illness absence. This will provide ninety-six (96) hours of personal illness/family illness absence annually. Unused personal illness/family
illness absence may accumulate to a total of the number of scheduled paid days in the current year as personal illness days.
 
The Elkhart Community Schools may request a doctor's approval to return to work following an illness.
 
Family Illness
 

A. All Executive Assistants are allowed up to twenty (20) days’ leave annually for illness in the immediate family, which is non-
accumulative and independent of personal illness/family illness policies. Immediate family shall mean employee's spouse, life partner,
children, siblings, parents, parents‑in‑law, brother‑ or sister‑in‑law, son‑ or daughter-in-law, grandparents, grandchildren, great-
grandparents, stepparents, stepchildren, or any member of the family unit living in the employee's household, any person for whom
the employee is the legal guardian, or for whom the employee is exercising rights authorized pursuant to a Power of Attorney. “Life
Partner” shall mean an individual whose close association with the employee is the equivalent of a family relationship. “Family Unit”
shall mean any person related to the employee, genetically or by marriage, or any person for whom the employee is the legal
guardian.
 

B. In the event a prolonged illness of a member of the immediate family occurs, the Superintendent may grant additional days.

 
Work-Related Injury
 
An employee injured in the performance of his or her duties is eligible for Worker's Compensation. The employee is required to complete an
injury report form on the day of the injury and to visit the designated medical facility as directed by the employer. Time required for the
employee to recuperate from any personal injury arising out of and in the course of employment responsibility shall be governed by Indiana
laws regarding Worker's Compensation. Worker's Compensation benefits will begin after seven (7) calendar days at a rate of sixty-six and
two-thirds percent (66-2/3%) of the employee's average wage rate. The employee's share of the health/life insurance premium must be paid
in advance to the Business Office or insurance will be terminated. An employee may receive full pay by using available illness absence,
personal business, and/or vacation benefits.
 
Personal Leave
 
Executive Assistants are entitled to the number of hours equal to three (3) workdays for absence for personal reasons during each calendar
year without loss of pay. A personal leave request form shall be completed and submitted to the appropriate administrator to accompany the
payroll report for the period in which the absence occurs.
 
If an employee retains all three (3) personal leave days at the end of the year, he/she can roll two (2) of the three (3) days to the following
year to equal five (5) personal leave days. The remaining unused personal leave day shall be transferred to accumulate for retirementsick
leave at the end of the year. In the event the employee intends to use five (5) consecutive days, the executive assistant must provide thirty
(30) calendar days written notice requesting the use of said consecutive days to their immediate supervisor.
 



Effective January 1, 2020, atAt the end of each calendar year, if the executive assistant does not elect to roll two (2) personal leave days into
the following year, all unused personal leave days shall accumulate for retirementbe transferred to sick leave.
 
Support Staff Personal Leave - Procedures
 
Request for personal leave shall be made by completing the classified personal leave request form and giving such form to the employee's
supervisor, or authorized designee, no less than twenty-four (24) hours in advanctendent to any regular employee who may be required or
shall elect to enter the military service. This will permit the employee to return to take a comparable position after s/he receives an honorable
discharge.
 
An employee who, as a reserve member of the armed forces of the United States or of the National Guard, is called on to receive temporary
military training shall be entitled to temporary leave of absence not to exceed fifteen (15) days in any one (1) calendar year. Such absence
shall result in no loss of wages. When the employee has received the military pay s/he shall present the check or a copy of the check to the
payroll office, whereupon a deduction equal to the per diem pay will be made for each day of paid absence from the next payroll check. Upon
return from temporary training or leave, the employee will be restored to a comparable position without loss of vacation, sick leave, or other
benefits of employment.
 
Health Leave
 
Through Board of School Trustees’ action regular classified employees may be granted a health leave after one (1) year of service. Requests
for health leave by an employee must be submitted in writing and must be supported by a physician’s statement.
 
The Board of School Trustees, after examining medical evidence, may place a regular employee on leave for health reasons if, in its
judgment, the physical or mental health of the employee is interfering with the successful performance of his/her responsibilities.
 
Health leaves may be granted for a maximum period of one (1) year. An employee shall be afforded the opportunity to continue participation
in any insurance program in which s/he is enrolled. Such participation shall be at the employee’s own expense.
 
Health Leave – Procedure
 
An employee with at least one (1) year’s service, who has used all of his/her personal illness, personal leave, FMLA Leave, and vacation
benefits, may be placed on a health leave.
 

A. After all other available benefit days have been exhausted, or
 

B. When a physician’s statement indicating inability to perform regular duties for an extended period of time has been provided, or
 

C. Upon receipt of a request for placement on such leave by the Director of Human Resources from the appropriate administrator.

 
Should the employee fail to provide a requested physician’s statement within thirty (30) days after s/he has used all benefits, it will be
grounds for termination. In addition, the employer may require an employee to have an examination by a physician.
 
The cost of any such examination will be paid by the employer In the event an employee is incapacitated, a family member or legal guardian
may submit the request for health leave, and any required documentation.
 
An employee may return from health leave with a physician’s statement indicating the ability to perform the job responsibilities. Employment
will be held for a period of up to one (1) year. After the employee has been on leave for a year, s/he will be eligible for re-employment when
an opening for which s/he is qualified becomes available.
 
Jury and Witness Duty Pay
 

A. Jury Duty
 
All Executive Assistants will be granted excused absence when they are subpoenaed to serve on the jury. Such absence shall result in
no loss of wages. When the employee has received her/his jury duty check, the check or copy of the check shall be presented to the
payroll office, whereupon a deduction equal to jury duty pay will be made from the next payroll check.
 

B. Witness Duty

In the event an employee is subpoenaed to serve as a witness, except in cases noted below, and gives testimony before a court of law
or governmental administrative agency, the employee shall be granted absence to witness for the time during the working day which
the employee is required to be present. Such absence, up to three (3) days for any one case, shall result in no loss of wages. For
cases involving extended absence to witness, the Superintendent may grant additional days with pay, with substitute deduction where
applicable, or without pay. When the employee is in receipt of his/her witness duty check, a copy of the check shall be presented to
the payroll office, whereupon a deduction equal to witness duty pay will be made from the next payroll check. The employee will not
be paid when such testimony is given in any employee relations related litigation involving the employer or any other school employer,
unless the employer subpoenas the employee to testify.

 



Parental Leave
 
A leave, without pay, may be granted to any expectant parent upon written request of the employee to the Director of Human Resources. In
the event the employee is pregnant, the leave may be requested to begin any time between thirty (30) days after the Director of Human
Resources is notified of the pregnancy and thirty (30) days after the birth of the child. For employees who are not pregnant, the leave may be
requested to begin any time within thirty (30) days of the date the child is expected in the home. In cases of emergency the thirty (30) day
notification period may be waived. Leaves may be requested for a period not to exceed one year, and are non-renewable.
 
The staff member shall return to the first position which becomes available for which s/he is qualified, as determined by the employer, or
waive any right to re-employment. For the period of the leave, a staff member may continue in any group insurance program for which s/he
is eligible, at his/her own expense, by paying the full cost of premiums in advance at the Business Office.
 
Adoptive Leave
 
An employee who legally adopts a child whose age is less than six (6) years old shall be entitled to use family illness leave days to serve as
the primary caregiver for the adoptive child. In order to be eligible for paid adoptive leave the employee must notify the Director of Human
Resources and the employee’s immediate supervisor of the request for adoptive leave upon acceptance of the application for adoption. All
such leaves shall commence on the date the child is physically turned over to the employee for the employee’s care and legal custody.
 
Vacations and Holidays
 
Executive Assistants shall be eligible for fifteen (15) days of vacation each contract year, exclusive of weekends and holidays, at a time(s)
approved by the staff member's immediate supervisor(s). Upon completion of five (5) years of employment with the Elkhart Community
Schools as an Executive Assistant, or when previous employment provided relatively comparable or executive secretarial experience, an
Executive Assistant shall be eligible for twenty-five (25) days of vacation each year.
 
Vacation days will be available to the staff member during the twelve (12) months of the calendar year and for six (6) months beyond.
Unused vacation days will not be cumulative after the expiration of the eighteen (18) month period and shall at that time be transferred to
sick leave and be available for use as sick leave days, provided at no time may more than the number of hours equal to the number of
scheduled workdays in the current year accumulate for use as sick leave.
 
Holidays
In order to receive holiday pay, an employee must be in an active pay status on the day before and after the holiday.
 

A. Executive Assistants shall be paid for the following holidays:
 
New Year’s - two (2) days
 
Martin Luther King Jr. Day
 
Presidents’ Day
 
Memorial Day
 
Independence Day - two (2) days
 
Labor Day
 
Thanksgiving
 
Friday immediately following Thanksgiving Day
 
Christmas - two (2) days
 
Specific dates for items A-1, 5, & 9 must be approved by the immediate supervisor
 

B. When any holiday is celebrated on a weekend, it will be a paid holiday on the Friday preceding or the Monday following, unless school
is in session.

 
Revised 3/28/17
Revised 12/12/17
Revised 8/14/18
Revised 12/18/18



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Book Policy Manual

Section 3000 Personnel

Title Proposed Revised SECRETARIAL/BUSINESS COMPENSATION PLAN

Code po3422.06S

Status

Adopted December 13, 2016

Last Revised December 10, 2019

Last Reviewed January 14, 2020

3422.06S - SECRETARIAL/BUSINESS COMPENSATION PLAN
 
The Board of School Trustees hereby adopts the following wage schedule for secretaries commencing January 1, 2020. In addition, the three
percent (3%) employee contribution to PERF will be paid by the Elkhart Community Schools.
 

  II II.3 II.6 III III.3 III.6 IV IV.3 IV.6 V

1 0 – 55 days 11.89 12.09 12.32 12.53 12.84 13.17 13.49 14.00 14.46 16.77

2 55 days – 1 year 12.18 12.42 12.71 13.00 13.45 13.90 14.35 14.81 15.27 17.59

3 1 year plus 12.53 12.85 13.17 13.49 13.95 14.42 14.76 15.22 15.74 18.07

4 2 years plus 13.00 13.45 13.90 14.35 14.73 15.12 15.54 16.00 16.49 18.80

5 3 years plus 13.49 13.93 14.35 14.76 15.27 15.84 16.37 16.84 17.32 19.64

6 4 years plus 14.35 14.73 15.12 15.54 16.04 16.60 17.15 17.63 18.10 20.41

7 5 years plus 14.76 15.27 15.84 16.37 17.01 17.65 18.27 18.73 19.22 21.53

 
*subject to Sections B-1 and B-2 of this policy.
 
Those secretaries who work in the evening on a regular basis shall be paid an additional twenty-five cents ($.25) per hour for evening hours.
 
Secretarial Classifications
 
The following job classifications will be in effect for the wage schedule listed above, subject to other sections of this policy:
 
Classifications
 

V Secretarial Business

Classified Human Resources Assistant
Administrative Assistant to Superintendent/Board of School
     Trustees

Certified Payroll
Classified Payroll
Insurance
 

IV Secretarial Business

Director of Career & Technical Ed.
High School Principal
Secretary/Human Resources
Data Specialist – Instructional Leadership

Building Services Office Manager
Payroll Assistant
Director of Business Operations
EACC – WVPE Office Manager
Director of Transportation
Mail Room/Duplicating      

III Secretarial Business
EACC Principal
EACC Central Office/Guidance/Accounting
Elementary Principal

Business Office/Purchasing
Cafeteria
Building Services Supply Coordinator



High School Athletics/Student Activities
High School Vice-Principal
High School Registrar
Middle School Principals
Elkhart Academy
Student Services Secretary (5 positions)
Receptionist
Library Services (CO)
*Federal Programs
Instructional Leadership
 

Director of Food Services
Safety & Security
Mail/Copy Center
 

II Secretarial Business
Adult & Community Ed. Data Entry
Adult & Community Ed. Receptionist
Office Assistants
High School Assistant Principal
High School Media Center
Middle School Assistant
 

EACC- Office
PACE Program
Teenage Parent Program
Clerical Asst. / Food Service (MHS)

 
*Subject to reclassification if this position becomes funded from the General Fund.
 
There will be an increase equal to the base increase for any secretary who by placement of the classifications listed in A of this section would
receive less than the base increase raise.
 

A. Commencement of Employment
 
Upon a secretary’s commencement of employment with the Elkhart Community Schools, such secretary may, at the discretion of the
superintendent/authorized designee, be placed at any of the first six (6) steps of the salary schedule. The secretary will serve a fifty-
five (55) calendar-day probationary period.
 
A secretary will proceed to the next step when she/he accumulates the time normally required to qualify for progression to the next
step of the wage schedule, unless performance is such that the immediate supervisor recommends the step movement be withheld.
This recommendation shall be made at the end of the probationary period of no more than eight (8) weeks, nor fewer than six (6)
weeks, prior to the anniversary date of the secretary in question.
 

B. Transfer of Job Classification
 
At the discretion of the employer, a secretary may be assigned to fill another secretarial position vacancy without the need to post the
vacancy, so long as both positions are within the same department, and both positions are in the same job classification. In the event
that a secretary transfers from one job classification to another, the secretary will normally be placed on probation in the new position,
but will continue to receive benefits. The provisions as written above shall be applicable except when a presently employed secretary
who is at the top step is transferred, and in that case the transferred secretary may be placed at her/his present step position by the
Director of Human Resources.
 

C. Reclassification of Positions
 
The administration retains the authority to reclassify positions when it determines that it is in the best interest of the Corporation.
 
In addition, the Secretarial Negotiations Committee may, during their annual discussions with the administration, propose
reclassification of secretarial positions.
 

D. Secretarial Career Increment Schedule

The amounts as listed will be added to the salary of any secretary whose years of employment in the Elkhart Community Schools
would qualify for such.
 
Years Regularly Employed in Elkhart Community Schools Hourly Increment
  
five (5) or more, but less than ten (10) $.20
  
ten (10) or more, but less than fifteen (15) $.30
  
fifteen (15) or more, but less than twenty (20) $.50
  
twenty (20) or more $.70

 
Mentor Program
 



Effective January 1, 2020, any secretary who is assigned to serve as a mentor shall be given a stipend of $600 per calendar year. Mentors
shall be assigned at the sole discretion of the Director of Human Resources at the time a secretary is assigned to a new position.
 
Fringe Benefits
 
Income Protection and Annuities
 
The Elkhart Community Schools provides the opportunity for regular classified employees to purchase income protection and tax sheltered
annuities. This is done by specifications and through a company or broker approved by the Board of Schools Trustees of the Elkhart
Community Schools.
 
Insurance
 
In addition to the basic salary schedule, the Elkhart Community Schools contributes toward a policy for each regular classified employee,
working thirty (30) or more hours per week, who is a member of the group hospitalization, major medical and life insurance program
approved by the Board of School Trustees. Eligible employees’ may select one of the plans provided by the Board.
 
The amount of life insurance coverage is an amount equal to the employee’s annual salary or wages rounded up to the next thousand dollars.
The Board will contribute ninety percent (90%) of the premium cost of a group long-term disability insurance policy for employees who work
thirty (30) or more hours per week.
 
Severance Benefits
 
Secretarial employees who have completed a minimum of six (6) months of active service with the Elkhart Community Schools will be eligible
for the following benefits upon written resignation received by the Director of Human Resources at least ten (10) working days prior to the
last date of employment.
 

A. Resignation
 
Employees shall be paid for unused personal business leave in the current year of employment. Vacation days earned in the current
year shall also be paid to full time employees. Payment for unused personal leave and vacation shall be made at the rate of pay in
effect at termination. The effective date of resignation shall be established to include use of all personal leave and unused vacation
days.
 

B. Retirement, Death, or Disability - The benefits listed below are in addition to those in Section A.
 

1. As used in this section, "retirement" shall be defined as resignation by a secretarial employee who is age sixty (60) and has ten
(10) or more consecutive years of employment; or who is fifty-five (55) years of age or older and has fifteen (15) or more
consecutive years of employment; or who is fifty (50) years of age or older and has twenty (20) consecutive years of
employment in the Elkhart Community Schools.
 

2. The Board will contribute $3,000 per year to be applied to the single or family plan insurance premium until age sixty-five (65)
for each secretary, age sixty (60) or beyond, who retires with notice received in the office of the Superintendent three (3)
months in advance. In the event of an emergency, relief from the required three (3) month notice may be granted at the
Superintendent’s discretion.
 
In addition, for the secretary who has fifteen (15) years of experience, is age fifty-five (55), and has been participating in the
group health and life insurance program for at least the last five (5) years, the employee, by paying one hundred percent
(100%) of the annual premium until age sixty, and by paying $1,250 less than one hundred percent (100%) of the annual
premium until age sixty-five (65), may continue in the group insurance plan until age sixty-five (65).
 
Also this benefit will be discontinued if the retired secretary becomes employed on a full time school year or calendar year
basis, or if through other employment qualifies for health insurance benefits. The employer reserves the right to request the
employment status of the retired secretary.
 

3. A retiring secretary will be paid his/her daily rate multiplied times the number of years of service in the Elkhart Community
Schools.
 

4. A maximum of thirty-five (35) accumulated days of unused personal leave will be paid to a secretarial employee who retires,
dies or becomes totally permanently disabled while employed by the Elkhart Community Schools. Vacation days earned in the
current year shall also be paid prior to retirement, or upon disability termination or death of the employee. In the event of
death, the above benefit shall be paid to the decedent’s estate.
 

5. In addition to the above benefits, the actual number of days of accumulated sick leave, not to exceed a maximum of twelve
(12) days or forty-five percent (45%) of the accumulated sick leave days, whichever is greater, shall be paid to a secretarial
employee at the time of retirement, or to the secretary’s beneficiary in the event of the death of a secretary eligible for
retirement.

 
Change in Support Classification



 
When any classified employee is employed in another classified employee group, all comparable benefits will remain in effect. Years of
accrued service and accumulated benefit days will continue, subject to Board Policy 3413S.
 
Absences
 
When unable to report for work, it is the employee’s responsibility to notify and give the reason for absence to his/her immediate supervisor
as soon as possible. This notice is to be given at least one-half (1/2) hour before the time that the employee regularly reports for work,
except for bus drivers, who should give at least one hour’s notice. Upon return to work, the employee shall file a report of absence.
Deductions for absence will be made at the daily rate unless covered by an absence policy. (No absence report is necessary on emergency
closing days when pay is not to be received.) 
 
All classified employees employed four (4) or more hours are entitled to certain illness and leave benefits. Absences for all classified
personnel in addition to the days to which they are entitled shall be considered to be unexcused, except those for which prior approval has
been granted. Any absence of an employee may, at the discretion of the employer, be subject to proper and sufficient verification satisfactory
to the employer. Three (3) days’ unexcused absences in any one school year shall be considered excessive and shall be grounds for
suspension or termination. Upon written request received by the appropriate administrator, at least two (2) weeks in advance (except in
emergencies), unpaid absences of five (5) or less consecutive working days may be approved. The best interests of the school corporation will
be considered.
 
Absences and Leaves Personal/Family Illness Absence Full-time Secretaries
 
Full-time secretaries will be allowed the number of hours equal to one (1) workday per month of employment for personal illness/family
illness absence. This will provide ninety-six (96) hours of personal illness/family illness absence annually. Unused personal illness/family
illness absence may accumulate to a total of the number of hours equal to two hundred fifteen (215) days as personal illness days.
 
School-year Secretaries
 

A. Regular school year classified employees will be awarded twelve (12) days of personal illness/family illness leave each calendar year.
 

B. Any unused hours will accumulate as personal illness absence to a total of the number of hours equal to one hundred fifty (150)
workdays. Use of accumulated sick leave by a school year employee terminates at the close of the school year. It cannot be used
again unless the employee is employed for the following school year or employed at a later date.

 
All Secretaries
 
The Elkhart Community Schools may request a doctor's approval to return to work following an illness.
 
Family Illness Leave
 

A. As used in this section, “immediate family” shall mean employee's spouse, life partner, children, siblings, parents, parents‑in‑law,
brother‑ or sister‑in‑law, son‑ or daughter-in-law, grandparents, grandchildren, great-grandparents, stepparents, stepchildren, or any
member of the family unit living in the employee's household, any person for whom the employee is the legal guardian, or for whom
the employee is exercising rights authorized pursuant to a Power of Attorney. “Life Partner” shall mean an individual whose close
association with the employee is the equivalent of a family relationship. “Family unit” shall mean any person related to the employee,
genetically or by marriage, or any person for whom the employee is the legal guardian.
 

B. A secretary shall be entitled to the number of hours equal to two (2) paid days for family illness leave per calendar year, provided that
such leave shall be for the sole purpose to care for a member of the secretary’s immediate family who becomes seriously ill and
requires both medical attention by a licensed physician and the care and attention of the secretary. Such medical attention provided
may be requested to be verified by a licensed practicing physician. Unused family illness will accumulate as illness absence.
 

C. When an emergency medical condition of an employee’s immediate family necessitates personal care by the employee for an extended
period of time (days), the employee may annually use five (5) or less days of personal illness to provide such care. This is in addition
to family illness provisions already provided.

 
Job-Related Injury
 
An employee injured in the performance of his/her duties is eligible for Worker’s Compensation. The employee is required to complete an
injury report form on the day of the injury and to visit the designated medical facility as directed by the employer. Time required for the
employee to recuperate from any personal injury arising out of and in the course of employment responsibility shall be governed by Indiana
laws regarding Worker’s Compensation. Worker’s Compensation benefits will begin after seven (7) calendar days at a rate of sixty-six and
two-thirds percent (66-2/3%) of the employee’s average wage rate. The employee’s share of the health/life insurance premium must be paid
in advance to the Business Office or insurance will be terminated. An employee may receive full pay by using available illness absence,
personal business, and/or vacation benefits.
 
Personal Leave
 



Secretarial/Business staff members are entitled to the number of hours equal to three (3) workdays for absence for personal reasons during
each calendar year without loss of pay. A personal leave request form shall be completed and submitted to the appropriate administrator to
accompany the payroll report for the period in which the absence occurs.
 
If an employee retains all three (3) personal business days at the end of the year, he/she can roll two (2) of the three (3) days to the
following year to equal five (5) personal business days. The remaining unused personal business day shall accumulate for retirement at the
end of the year. In the event the employee intends to use five (5) consecutive days the employee must provide thirty (30) calendar days
written notice requesting the use of said consecutive days to their immediate supervisor. If a secretary does not elect to roll two (2) personal
business days into the following year, all unused personal leave will accumulate for retirement.
 
Secretarial/Business Personal Leave - Procedure
 
Request for personal leave shall be made by completing the classified personal leave request form and giving such form to the employee’s
supervisor, or authorized designee, no less than twenty-four (24) hours in advance. In the event of an unforeseen emergency beyond the
control of the employee, which makes it impossible to give the twenty-four (24) hours advance notice, the employee shall notify the employer
as soon as reasonably possible. When such is the case, the written request shall be completed no later than the first day of return from the
absence.
 
For less than twelve (12) month secretaries, except for emergencies, personal business hours shall not be used for the sole purpose of
extending the school vacation periods of Thanksgiving, Winter Recess, Spring Break or Summer Break, or the day preceding fall recess in the
event that day is scheduled as a parent teacher conference day, as defined by the school calendar, unless the employee complies with the
following procedure:
 

A. Once every three (3) years, an employee may use personal business hours to extend a holiday or vacation period described above by
exchanging two personal business hours for each personal business hour taken adjacent to the holiday or vacation period.
 

B. The employee must give notice, in writing, to the Office of the Superintendent ten (10) working days in advance of taking said day.
 

C. All emergency requests for personal business immediately preceding or immediately following vacation periods shall be granted only
upon approval of the Superintendent or designee. For the purpose of determining when an emergency exists, "emergency" shall be
defined as an unforeseen event that prohibits the employee from attending to his/her assigned duties.

 
For 12-month secretaries, personal business leave may be taken at any time upon the approval of the supervisor or authorized designee.
 
No personal leave will be granted for participation in any strike or work stoppage or other concerted action by an employee or employee
group.
 
Attendance Incentive Program
 
For the purpose of this attendance incentive program, the year will run from January 1st through December 31st.
 
During the month of January, any secretary who has perfect attendance throughout the prior year, other than vacation, bereavement, or
personal leave, shall be paid the sum of $500. Any employee who is absent for any reason for five (5) or less days throughout the prior
year, other than vacation, bereavement, or personal leave days, shall be paid the sum of $250.
 
Bereavement
 
Each regular classified employee shall be entitled to be absent from work without loss of compensation on account of death in the immediate
family for five (5) business days beyond the date of death. Said days must be used by the employee within twelve (12) months of the death
of the immediate family member, but do not have to be used consecutively.
 
“Immediate family” shall mean employee's spouse, life partner, children, siblings, parents, parents‑in‑law, brother‑ or sister‑in‑law, son‑ or
daughter-in-law, grandparents, grandchildren, great-grandparents, stepparents, stepchildren, or any member of the family unit living in the
employee's household, any person for whom the employee is the legal guardian, or for whom the employee is exercising rights authorized
pursuant to a Power of Attorney.
 
Bereavement leave shall also include a miscarriage or the birth of a stillborn baby and be considered a death within the employee’s
immediate family.
 
Up to one (1) day’s absence shall be granted without loss of compensation to attend the funeral of another relative.
 
When requested, additional bereavement day(s) with or without pay may be granted by the Superintendent or designee.
 
A secretary shall be entitled to up to one (1) paid day per year, to be taken in increments of no less than two hours for an absence, to attend
the funeral of a close friend, upon the condition that the requested absence must not create a serious problem in the secretary’s work setting.
 
Military Leave
 
A leave of absence may be granted by the Board of School Trustees on the recommendation of the Superintendent to any regular employee
who may be required or shall elect to enter the military service. This will permit the employee to return to take a comparable position after



s/he receives an honorable discharge.
 
An employee who, as a reserve member of the armed forces of the United States or of the National Guard, is called on to receive temporary
military training shall be entitled to temporary leave of absence not to exceed fifteen (15) days in any one (1) calendar year. Such absence
shall result in no loss of wages. When the employee has received the military pay s/he shall present the check or a copy of the check to the
payroll office, whereupon a deduction equal to the per diem pay will be made for each day of paid absence from the next payroll check. Upon
return from temporary training or leave, the employee will be restored to a comparable position without loss of vacation, sick leave, or other
benefits of employment.
 
Health Leave
 
Through Board of School Trustees’ action regular classified employees may be granted a health leave after one (1) year of service. Requests
for health leave by an employee must be submitted in writing and must be supported by a physician’s statement.
 
The Board of School Trustees, after examining medical evidence, may place a regular employee on leave for health reasons if, in its
judgment, the physical or mental health of the employee is interfering with the successful performance of his/her responsibilities.
 
Health leaves may be granted for a maximum period of one (1) year. An employee shall be afforded the opportunity to continue participation
in any insurance program in which s/he is enrolled. Such participation shall be at the employee’s own expense.
 
Health Leave – Procedure
 
An employee with at least one year’s service, who has used all of his/her personal illness, personal leave, FMLA Leave, and vacation benefits,
may be placed on a health leave.
 

A. After all other available benefit days have been exhausted, or
 

B. When a physician’s statement indicating inability to perform regular duties for an extended period of time has been provided, or
 

C. Upon receipt of a request for placement on such leave by the Director of Human Resources from the appropriate administrator.

 
Should the employee fail to provide a requested physician’s statement within thirty (30) days after s/he has used all benefits, it will be
grounds for termination. In addition, the employer may require an employee to have an examination by a physician. The cost of any such
examination will be paid by the employer.
 
In the event an employee is incapacitated, a family member or legal guardian may submit the request for health leave, and any required
documentation.
 
An employee may return from health leave with a physician’s statement indicating the ability to perform the job responsibilities. Employment
will be held for a period of up to one (1) year. After the employee has been on leave for a year, s/he will be eligible for re-employment when
an opening for which s/he is qualified becomes available.
 
Jury and Witness Duty Pay
 

A. Jury Duty
 
All secretaries will be granted excused absence when they are subpoenaed to serve on the jury. Such absence shall result in no loss of
wages. When the employee has received her/his jury duty check, the check or copy of the check shall be presented to the payroll
office, whereupon a deduction equal to jury duty pay will be made from the next payroll check.
 

B. Witness Duty

In the event an employee is subpoenaed to serve as a witness, except in cases noted below, and gives testimony before a court of law
or governmental administrative agency, the employee shall be granted absence to witness for the time during the working day which
the employee is required to be present. Such absence, up to three (3) days for any one case, shall result in no loss of wages. For
cases involving extended absence to witness, the Superintendent may grant additional days with pay, with substitute deduction where
applicable, or without pay. When the employee is in receipt of his/her witness duty check, a copy of the check shall be presented to
the payroll office, whereupon a deduction equal to witness duty pay will be made from the next payroll check. The employee will not
be paid when such testimony is given in any employee relations related litigation involving the employer or any other school employer,
unless the employer subpoenas the employee to testify.

 
Parental Leave
 
A leave, without pay, may be granted to any expectant parent upon written request of the employee to the Director of Human Resources. In
the event the employee is pregnant, the leave may be requested to begin any time between thirty (30) days after the Director of Human
Resources is notified of the pregnancy and thirty (30) days after the birth of the child. For employees who are not pregnant, the leave may be
requested to begin any time within thirty (30) days of the date the child is expected in the home. In cases of emergency the thirty (30) day
notification period may be waived. Leaves may be requested for a period not to exceed one year, and are non-renewable.



 
The staff member shall return to the first position which becomes available for which s/he is qualified, as determined by the employer, or
waive any right to re-employment. For the period of the leave, a staff member may continue in any group insurance program for which s/he
is eligible, at his/her own expense, by paying the full cost of premiums in advance at the Business Office.
 
Adoptive Leave
 
An employee who legally adopts a child whose age is less than six (6) years old shall be entitled to use family illness leave days to serve as
the primary caregiver for the adoptive child. In order to be eligible for paid adoptive leave the employee must notify the Director of Human
Resources and the employee’s immediate supervisor of the request for adoptive leave upon acceptance of the application for adoption. All
such leaves shall commence on the date the child is physically turned over to the employee for the employee’s care and legal custody.
 
Holidays and Vacations
 
Definitions

A. As used in this policy, the term "full-time employee" means an employee who is employed on a twelve month basis and who has a
regular workday of four (4) or more hours.
 

B. As used in this policy, the term "school-year employee" means an employee who is employed on a school-year basis and works
approximately 175 or more days per year, and who has a regular workday of four (4) or more hours.

Holidays
 
In order to receive holiday pay, an employee must be in an active pay status the day before and after the holiday.
 

A. Full-time employees shall be paid for the following holidays, when they occur on days which would have been worked if it were not for
that special day, subject to the provisions below:
 
New Year’s - two (2) days (See Sec. A.1.)
  
Martin Luther King Jr. Day  
  
Presidents’ Day (See Sec. A.4.)
  
Memorial Day  
  
Independence Day - two (2) days (See Sec. A.2.)
  
Labor Day  
  
Thanksgiving - two (2) days (See Sec. A.3.)
  
Christmas - two (2) days (See Sec. A.1.)
 

1. During the winter break (when schools are closed) four (4) days will be allowed as follows:
 

a. When January 1 and December 25 fall on a weekday, they shall be paid holidays, and a classified employee may,
subject to approval of the immediate supervisor, select either but not both, December 24 or December 26 as a holiday
with pay, and may, subject to approval of the immediate supervisor, select either but not both, December 31 or January
2 as a holiday with pay. To be eligible for either of the above selections, a classified employee must make such request
to the immediate supervisor no later than December 10.
 

b. When January 1 and December 25 fall on a weekend, then both the Friday before and the Monday after shall be paid
holidays, unless schools are open on one of these days, in which case an alternate day will be determined.
 

2. When any holiday is celebrated on a weekend, it will be a paid holiday on the Friday preceding or the Monday following, unless
school is in session.
 

3. Thanksgiving Day and the day following will be paid holidays.
 

4. Presidents’ Day will be a paid holiday.
 

B. School-year classified employees shall be paid for the following holidays when they occur on days which they would have worked if it
were not for that special day, subject to the provisions above:
 
Martin Luther King Jr. Day  
  
Presidents’ Day  



  
Memorial Day  
  
Labor Day  
  
Thanksgiving - two (2) days (See Sec. A.3.)
  
Christmas - one (1) day (if celebrated on a weekend, it will be paid holiday on the Friday
preceding or the Monday following.

 
Vacations
 

A. A full-time employee, who has, as of December 31, been employed by the Elkhart Community Schools for less than one (1) calendar
year, shall be entitled to one (1) working day vacation with pay during the calendar year, for each full month of employment
completed, provided no more than ten (10) vacation days may be accrued. Vacation benefit may not be utilized prior to accrual
and approval from Administrator.
 

B. A full time employee, who has, as of December 31 of each year, been employed by the Elkhart Community Schools for that entire
calendar year, shall be entitled to ten (10) working days vacation with pay during the next calendar year.
 

C. A full time employee, who has, as of December 31 of each year, been employed by the Elkhart Community Schools for six (6)
consecutive years, is entitled to fifteen (15) working days vacation with pay during the next calendar year.
 

D. A full time employee, who has, as of December 31 of each year, been employed by the Elkhart Community Schools for fifteen (15)
consecutive years, is entitled to twenty (20) working days vacation with pay during the next calendar year.
 

E. A full time employee, who has, as of December 31 of each year, been employed by the Elkhart Community Schools for twenty (20)
consecutive years, is entitled to twenty-five (25) working days vacation with pay during the next calendar year.
 

F. Years shall be considered "consecutive" so long as any interruption of service did not include other employment.
 

G. For the sole purpose of determining vacation benefit eligibility; employees who transfer from a school-year position to a twelve (12)
month position will be granted years of service based on the following conversion formula. NOTE: the years of service conversion is
only applicable for the purpose of vacation benefits. This computation does not replace the total years of service invested with
Elkhart Community Schools for the purposes of Retirement benefits or Staff Recognition.
 
The employee’s employment record with Elkhart Community Schools for all positions held will be considered. Using the number of paid
hours per day, multiplied by the number of paid days per school year, divided by 2080 to obtain the number of years equivalent to a
twelve (12) month position. The total number of equivalent years will be rounded up to nearest whole number.
 
The calculated number of years of service will be used in determining the total number of day’s vacation which such full-time
employee is entitled to receive under this policy. The employee will receive the total amount of awarded vacation days effective the
January following their date of conversion. Prior to completing one full year of service, the employee will be entitled to a prorated
amount of vacation days based on the calculation formula referenced in the paragraph above.
 

H. Dates requested for use as vacation days shall be submitted to the immediate supervisor prior to the first day of requested vacation,
and shall be subject to the approval of the immediate supervisor.
 
When vacation days for secretaries have been requested and approved but are not able to be used due to administrative directive, an
extension of up to three (3) months will be granted for the use of such day(s).
 

I. Vacation days will be available to the staff member during the twelve (12) months of the calendar year and for six (6) months beyond.
 

J. A school-year employees will not be entitled to paid vacation days.

 
Revised 1/10/17
Revised 3/28/17
Revised 5/23/17
Revised 7/25/17
Revised 12/12/17
Revised 2/17/18
Revised 5/8/18
Revised 11/13/18
Revised 12/18/18
Revised 3/12/19
Revised 3/12/19



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Book Policy Manual

Section 3000 Personnel

Title Proposed Revised PARAPROFESSIONALS’ COMPENSATION PLAN

Code po3422.08S

Status

Adopted December 13, 2016

Last Revised December 10, 2019

Last Reviewed January 14, 2020

3422.08S - PARAPROFESSIONALS’ COMPENSATION PLAN
 
The Board of School Trustees hereby adopts the following wage schedule for paraprofessionals to be effective January 1, 2020.
 
Paraprofessionals’ Wage Schedule
 

A. No B.A. or B.S. Degree in Education                                                                                                     
 
Step ECS Experience as Paraprofessional Hourly Rate
  A B
1 0 days or more, but less than fifty-five (55) days (Probationary Rate) 10.24 9.69
2 55 days or more, but less than 1 year 10.36 10.06
3 1 year or more, but less than 2 years 10.87 10.59
4 2 years or more, but less than 3 years 11.43 11.10
5 3 years or more, but less than 4 years 11.96 11.60
6 4 years or more, but less than 5 years 12.40 12.03
7 5 years or more, but less than 6 years 12.96 12.55
8 6 years or more, but less than 7 years 13.44 13.04
9 7 years or more 14.00 13.57
 

1. B.A. or B.S. Degree in Education
 
StepECS Experience* as Paraprofessional Hourly Rate
 *subject to Sections 2-A-5 and 2-B-2 A B
1 0 days or more, but less than 55 days (Probationary Rate) 11.00 10.71
2 55 days or more, but less than 1 year 11.43 11.10
3 1 year or more, but less than 2 years 11.96 11.60
4 2 years or more, but less than 3 years 12.40 12.03
5 3 years or more, but less than 4 years 12.96 12.55
6 4 years or more, but less than 5 years 13.44 13.04
7 5 years or more, but less than 6 years 14.00 13.57
 
Key:Column A = Less than four (4) hours/day employees

 Column B = Four (4) or more hours/day employees (In addition, the three percent
(3%) employee contribution to PERF will be paid by Elkhart Community School.

 

Explanation of Schedules
 

A. Paraprofessional with no B.A. or B.S. Degree
 

1. An employee who does not possess by January 1 of each year a Bachelor of Arts or Bachelor of Science degree in education
from an accredited four year college or university shall be classified as a "paraprofessional" and shall be paid a wage in
accordance with the Wage Schedule, pursuant to Paraprofessionals’ Wage Schedule-A of this Policy.
 

2. Any paraprofessional with thirty (30) or more but less than ninety (90) semester hours credit as described in part 4 of this
section shall be placed on Step 3 of the salary schedule after successful completion of probationary employment.



 
3. Any paraprofessional with ninety (90) or more semester hours credit as described in part 4 of this section shall be placed on

Step 4 of the salary schedule after successful completion of probationary employment.
 

4. All semester credit hours must be a part of a regular college or university program leading to a B.A. or B.S. degree in
education, and a letter of verification shall be submitted to the Director of Human Resources for approval before credit towards
experience is granted.
 

5. Verified experience as a teacher, substitute teacher, or educational aide will be evaluated to determine placement, but in no
case will an employee be placed at Step 8 or higher.
 

6. Director of Human Resources/Designee may place paraprofessionals in hard to fill positions (e.g. emotionally disabled, intense
intervention) on steps 4 – 8 of the Paraprofessionals’ Wage Schedule at their date of hire.
 

7. No change in wage status due to earned credit hours shall be made at any time other than January 1 of each year.
 

8. Paraprofessionals employed on or before January 1, 1976, who possess a B.A. or B.S. college degree in a field other than
educational shall be eligible for placement on Paraprofessionals’ Wage Schedule -B, Paraprofessional Wage Schedule.
 

B. Paraprofessional with a B.A. or B.S. Degree
 

1. Upon completion of a Bachelor of Arts or Bachelor of Science degree in education, a paraprofessional shall be classified,
beginning January 1 of the year following completion of said degree, as a "paraprofessional" and shall be paid a wage in
accordance with the Paraprofessional Wage Schedule, pursuant to Paraprofessionals’ Wage Schedule-B of this Policy.
 

2. Verified experience as a teacher, substitute teacher, or educational aide will be evaluated to determine placement, but in no
case will an employee be placed at Step 6 or higher.
 

C. Wage Differentials
 

1. Paraprofessionals assigned to emotionally disabled classrooms as well as special education classrooms where custodial care and
lifting are required shall be paid a differential of $1.00 per hour over their existing rate. In addition, paraprofessionals who are
required to perform pre-trip inspections of activity busses will be paid a differential of $1.00 per hour over their existing rate.
 

2. Elementary library paraprofessionals and technology instructional paraprofessionals shall be paid a differential of $1.00 per
hour over their existing rate.
 

3. Technology instructional paraprofessionals who obtain and maintain certification prescribed by the Director of Technology
Integration shall receive an additional pay differential of $1.00 per hour.
 

4. Paraprofessionals assigned to the Elkhart Academy, both secondary and elementary, shall be paid a differential of $1.00 per
hour over their existing rate
 

D. Paraprofessional Career Increment Schedule
 

Years regularly employed by Elkhart Community Schools
Amount of

Hourly Career
Increment

  
5 or more, but less than 10 .20
  
10 or more, but less than 15 .30
  
15 or more, but less than 17 .40
  
17 or more, but less than 20 .50
  
20 or more .60
 

Paraprofessionals’ Fringe Benefits
 

A. Income Protection and Annuities
 
The Elkhart Community Schools provides the opportunity for regular classified employees to purchase income protection and tax-
sheltered annuities. This is done by specifications and through a company or broker approved by the Board.
 

B. Insurance
 



In addition to the basic salary schedule, the Elkhart Community Schools contributes toward a policy for each regular classified
employee, working thirty (30) or more hours per week, who is a member of the group hospitalization, major medical and life insurance
program approved by the Board of School Trustees. Eligible employees’ may select one of the plans provided by the Board.
 
The amount of life insurance coverage is an amount equal to the employee’s annual salary or wages rounded up to the next thousand
dollars. The Board will contribute ninety percent (90%) of the premium cost of a group long-term disability insurance policy for
employees who work thirty (30) or more hours per week.
 

C. Severance Benefits
 
Paraprofessionals who have completed a minimum of six (6) months of active service with the Elkhart Community Schools will be
eligible for the following benefits upon written resignation received by the Director of Human Resources at least ten (10) working days
prior to the last date of employment.
 

1. Resignation
 
Employees shall be paid for unused personal business leave in the current year of employment at the rate of pay in effect at
termination. The effective date of resignation shall be established to include use of all personal leave.
 

2. Retirement, Death, or Disability
 
The benefits listed below are in addition to those in Paraprofessionals’ Fringe Benefits.
 

a. For purposes of this benefit, "retirement" shall be defined as resignation by an employee who at the time of retirement
is age sixty (60) and has ten (10) or more consecutive years of employment in the Elkhart Community Schools or who
is age fifty-five (55) and has fifteen (15) or more consecutive years of employment in Elkhart Community Schools. Only
the six (6) months service requirement must be met to be eligible for the disability or death benefit.
 
The requirement for consecutive years of employment is modified only under the following conditions: If a
paraprofessional leaves the employment of the Elkhart Community Schools for any reason and for any period of time
and then return to employment with the Elkhart Community Schools, the years of service completed prior to this break
in employment will be counted toward the years of employment requirement for severance benefits, but the employee
must work two additional years beyond the total number required to normally reach the years of employment
requirement. For example, if a paraprofessional works for the district for eight (8) years, leaves the district’s
employment for one (1) year and then returns to employment, s/he must work another four (4) years in order to meet
the age sixty (60) and ten (10) years of experience requirement, or nine (9) years in order to meet the age fifty- five
(55) and fifteen (15) years of experience requirement. In addition, there can only be one break in employment under
this exception to the consecutive years of service requirement. If there is more than one break in service, the
paraprofessional’s prior years of service will not be counted and the consecutive service requirement will apply.
 

b. A maximum of thirty-five (35) accumulated days of unused personal leave will be paid to eligible employees who retire,
die, or become totally permanently disabled while employed by the Elkhart Community Schools. In the event of death,
the benefit shall be paid to the decedent’s estate.
 

c. In addition, employees who are fifty-five (55) years of age or older and have at least fifteen (15) years of service and
who have been insured under the Elkhart Community Schools’ group insurance plan for at least the last five (5) years,
shall be eligible to continue in that program until age sixty-five (65) by paying 100% of the premiums in advance at the
business office.
 

d. When retiring, a Paraprofessional may select one of the following benefits based upon the employee’s daily rate at the
time of retirement:
 

1. Two (2) day’s pay for each full year employed by the Elkhart Community Schools, or
 

2. At least forty-five percent (45%) of the unused sick leave will be paid, in accordance with the provisions in the
Paraprofessional employee booklet.
 

D. Change in Paraprofessionals Classification

When any classified employee is employed in another classified employee group, all comparable benefits will remain in effect. Years of
accrued service and accumulated benefit days will continue, subject to Board Policy.

 
Absences
 
When unable to report for work, it is the employee’s responsibility to notify and give the reason for absence to his/her immediate supervisor
as soon as possible. This notice is to be given at least one-half (1/2) hour before the time that the employee regularly reports for work. Upon
return to work, the employee shall file a report of absence. Deductions for absence will be made at the daily rate unless covered by an
absence policy. (No absence report is necessary on emergency closing days when pay is not to be received.)



 
All classified employees employed four (4) or more hours are entitled to certain illness and leave benefits. Absences for all classified
personnel in addition to the days to which they are entitled shall be considered to be unexcused, except those for which prior approval has
been granted. Any absence of an employee may, at the discretion of the employer, be subject to proper and sufficient verification satisfactory
to the employer. Three (3) days’ unexcused absences in any one school year shall be considered excessive and shall be grounds for
suspension or termination. Upon written request received by the appropriate administrator, at least two (2) weeks in advance (except in
emergencies), unpaid absences of five or less consecutive working days may be approved. The best interests of the school corporation will be
considered.
 
Personal Illness/Family Illness Absence
 

A. School-year Employees
 

1. Regular school year classified employees will be awarded twelve (12) days of personal illness/family illness leave each calendar
year.
 

2. Any unused hours will accumulate as personal illness absence to a total of the number of hours equal to 120 workdays. Use of
accumulated sick leave by a school year employee terminates at the close of the school year. It cannot be used again unless
the employee is employed for the following school year or employed at a later date.
 

B. All Employees
 

1. The Elkhart Community Schools may request a doctor’s approval to return to work following an illness.
 

2. Immediate family shall mean employee's spouse, life partner, children, siblings, parents, parents‑in‑law, brother‑ or
sister‑in‑law, son‑ or daughter-in-law, grandparents, grandchildren, great-grandparents, stepparents, stepchildren, or any
member of the family unit living in the employee's household, any person for whom the employee is the legal guardian, or for
whom the employee is exercising rights authorized pursuant to a Power of Attorney. “Life Partner” shall mean an individual
whose close association with the employee is the equivalent of a family relationship. “Family Unit” shall mean any person
related to the employee, genetically or by marriage, or any person for whom the employee is the legal guardian.
 

3. An employee injured in the performance of his/her duties is eligible for Worker’s Compensation. The employee is required to
complete an injury report form on the day of the injury and to visit the designated medical facility as directed by the employer.
Time required for the employee to recuperate from any personal injury arising out of and in the course of employment
responsibility shall be governed by Indiana laws regarding Worker’s Compensation. Worker’s Compensation benefits will begin
after seven (7) calendar days at a rate of sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66- 2/3%) of the employee’s average wage rate.
The employee’s share of the health/life insurance premium must be paid in advance to the Business Office or insurance will be
terminated. An employee may receive full pay by using available illness absence, personal business, and/or vacation benefits.

 
Attendance Incentive Program
 
Beginning January 1, 2020, the following attendance incentive program will be effective for all paraprofessional employees. For the purpose of
this program, the year will run from January 1st through December 31st.
 
During the month of January, any paraprofessional who has perfect attendance throughout the prior year, other than vacation, bereavement,
or personal leave, shall be paid the sum of $500. Any employee who is absent for any reason for five (5) or less days during the prior year,
other than vacation, bereavement, or personal leave days, shall be paid the sum of $250.
 
Bereavement
 
Each regular classified employee shall be entitled to be absent from work without loss of compensation on account of death in the immediate
family for five (5) business days beyond the date of death. Said days must be used by the employee within twelve (12) months of the death
of the immediate family member, but do not have to be used consecutively.
 
“Immediate family” shall mean employee's spouse, life partner, children, siblings, parents, parents‑in‑law, brother‑ or sister‑in‑law, son‑ or
daughter-in-law, grandparents, grandchildren, great-grandparent, stepparents, stepchildren, or any member of the family unit living in the
employee's household, any person for whom the employee is the legal guardian, or for whom the employee is exercising rights authorized
pursuant to a Power of Attorney.
 
Bereavement leave shall also include a miscarriage or the birth of a stillborn baby and be considered a death within the employee’s
immediate family.
 
Up to one (1) day’s absence shall be granted without loss of compensation to attend the funeral of another relative.
 
When requested, additional bereavement day(s), with or without pay, may be granted by the Superintendent or designee.
 
Military Leave 
 



A leave of absence may be granted by the Board of School Trustees on the recommendation of the Superintendent to any regular employee
who may be required or shall elect to enter the military service. This will permit the employee to return to take a comparable position after
s/he receives an honorable discharge.
 
An employee who, as a reserve member of the armed forces of the United States or of the National Guard, is called on to receive temporary
military training shall be entitled to temporary leave of absence not to exceed fifteen (15) days in any one (1) calendar year. Such absence
shall result in no loss of wages. When the employee has received the military pay he/she shall present the check or a copy of the check to the
payroll office, whereupon a deduction equal to the per diem pay will be made for each day of paid absence from the next payroll check. Upon
return from temporary training or leave, the employee will be restored to a comparable position without loss of vacation, sick leave, or other
benefits of employment.
 
Health Leave
 
Through Board of School Trustees’ action, regular classified employees may be granted a health leave after one (1) year of service. Requests
for health leave by an employee must be submitted in writing and must be supported by a physician’s statement.
 
The Board, after examining medical evidence, may place a regular employee on leave for health reasons if, in its judgment, the physical or
mental health of the employee is interfering with the successful performance of his/her responsibilities.
 
Health leaves may be granted for a maximum period of one (1) year. An employee shall be afforded the opportunity to continue participation
in any insurance program in which s/he is enrolled. Such participation shall be at the employee’s own expense.
 
Health Leave - Procedure
 
Through Board of School Trustees’ action regular classified employees may be granted a health leave after one (1) year of service. Requests
for health leave by an employee must be submitted in writing and must be supported by a physician’s statement.
 
The Board of School Trustees, after examining medical evidence, may place a regular employee on leave for health reasons if, in its
judgment, the physical or mental health of the employee is interfering with the successful performance of his/her responsibilities.
 
Health leaves may be granted for a maximum period of one (1) year. An employee shall be afforded the opportunity to continue participation
in any insurance program in which s/he is enrolled. Such participation shall be at the employee’s own expense.
 

A. After all available benefit days have been exhausted, or
 

B. When a physician’s statement indicating inability to perform regular duties for an extended period of time has been provided, or
 

C. Upon receipt of a request for placement on such leave by the Director of Human Resources from the appropriate administrator.

 
Should the employee fail to provide a requested physician’s statement within thirty (30) days after s/he has used all benefits, it will be
grounds for termination. In addition, the employer may require an employee to have an examination by a physician. The cost of any such
examination will be paid by the employer.
 
In the event an employee is incapacitated, a family member or legal guardian may submit the request for health leave, and any required
documentation.
 
An employee may return from health leave with a physician’s statement indicating the ability to perform the job responsibilities. Employment
will be held for a period of up to one (1) year. After the employee has been on leave for a year, s/he will be eligible for re-employment when
an opening for which s/he is qualified becomes available.
 
Personal Leave
 
Regular classified employees are entitled to the number of hours equal to three (3) workdays for absence for personal reasons during each
calendar year without loss of pay. A personal leave request form shall be completed and submitted to the appropriate administrator to
accompany the payroll report for the period in which the absence occurs.
 
If an employee retains all three (3) personal business days at the end of the year, he/she can roll two (2) of the three (3) days to the
following year to equal five (5) personal business days. The remaining unused personal business day shall accumulate for retirement at the
end of the year. In the event the employee intends to use five (5) consecutive days, the employee must provide thirty (30) calendar days
written notice requesting the use of said consecutive days to their immediate supervisor.
 
If an employee does not elect to roll two (2) personal business days into the following year, all unused personal leave will accumulate for
retirement.
 
Personal Leave - Procedure
 
Request for personal leave shall be made by completing the classified personal leave request form and giving such form to the employee’s
supervisor, or authorized designee, no less than twenty-four (24) hours in advance. In the event of an unforeseen emergency beyond the
control of the employee, which makes it impossible to give the twenty-four (24) hours advance notice, the employee shall notify the employer



as soon as reasonably possible. When such is the case, the written request shall be completed no later than the first day of return from the
absence.
 
Except for emergencies, personal business hours shall not be used for the sole purpose of extending the school vacation periods of
Thanksgiving, Winter Recess, Spring Break or Summer Break, or the day preceding fall recess in the event that day is scheduled as a parent
teacher conference day, as defined by the school calendar, unless the employee complies with the following procedure:
 

A. Once every three (3) years, an employee may use personal business hours to extend a holiday or vacation period described above by
exchanging two personal business hours for each personal business hour taken adjacent to the holiday or vacation period.
 

B. The employee must give notice, in writing, to the Office of the Superintendent ten (10) working days in advance of taking said day.
 

C. All emergency requests for personal business immediately preceding or immediately following vacation periods shall be granted only
upon approval of the Superintendent or designee. For the purpose of determining when an emergency exists, "emergency" shall be
defined as an unforeseen event that prohibits the employee from attending to his/her assigned duties.

 
Jury and Witness Duty Pay
 
Jury Duty
 
All paraprofessionals will be granted excused absence when they are subpoenaed to serve on the jury. Such absence shall result in no loss of
wages. When the employee has received her/his jury duty check, the check or copy of the check shall be presented to the payroll office,
whereupon a deduction equal to jury duty pay will be made from the next payroll check.
 
Witness Duty
 
In the event an employee is subpoenaed to serve as a witness, except in cases noted below, and gives testimony before a court of law or
governmental administrative agency, the employee shall be granted absence to witness for the time during the working day which the
employee is required to be present. Such absence, up to three (3) days for any one case, shall result in no loss of wages. For cases involving
extended absence to witness, the superintendent may grant additional days with pay, with substitute deduction where applicable, or without
pay. When the employee is in receipt of his/her witness duty check, a copy of the check shall be presented to the payroll office, whereupon a
deduction equal to witness duty pay will be made from the next payroll check. The employee will not be paid when such testimony is given in
any employee relations related litigation involving the employer or any other school employer, unless the employer subpoenas the employee
to testify.
 
Parental Leave
 
A leave, without pay, may be granted to any expectant parent upon written request of the employee to the Director of Human Resources. In
the event that the employee is pregnant, the leave may be requested to begin any time between thirty (30) days after the Director of Human
Resources is notified of the pregnancy and thirty (30) days after the birth of the child. For employees who are not pregnant, the leave may be
requested to begin any time within thirty (30) days of the date that the child is expected in the home. In cases of emergency the thirty (30)
day notification period may be waived. Leaves may be requested for a period not to exceed one (1) year, and are non-renewable.
 
The staff member shall return to the first position which becomes available for which s/he is qualified, as determined by the employer, or
waive any right to re-employment. For the period of the leave, a staff member may continue in any group insurance program for which s/he
is eligible, at his/her own expense, by paying the full cost of premiums in advance at the Business Office.
 
Adoptive Leave
 
An employee who legally adopts a child whose age is less than six (6) years old shall be entitled to use family illness leave days to serve as
the primary caregiver for the adoptive child. In order to be eligible for paid adoptive leave the employee must notify the Director of Human
Resources and the employee’s immediate supervisor of the request for adoptive leave upon acceptance of the application for adoption. All
such leaves shall commence on the date that the child is physically turned over to the employee for the employee’s care and legal custody.
 
Paraprofessionals’ Holidays
 
In order to receive holiday pay, an employee must be in an active pay status on the day before and after the holiday.
 

A. Definitions
 

1. As used in this policy, the term "full-time employee" means an employee who is employed on a twelve-month basis and who
has a regular workday of four (4) or more hours.
 

2. As used in this policy, the term "school-year employee" means an employee who is employed on a school-year basis and works
approximately one hundred seventy-five (175) or more days per year, and who has a regular workday of four (4) or more
hours.
 

B. Holidays



 
School-year classified employees shall be paid for the following holidays when they occur on days which they would have worked if it
were not for that special day, subject to the provisions above:

Martin Luther King, Jr. Day

Presidents Day

Memorial Day

Labor Day

Thanksgiving Day – two (2) days

Christmas Day (if celebrated on a weekend, it will be a paid holiday on the Friday preceding or the Monday following)

 
Revised 1/1/17
Revised 12/12/17
Revised 10/23/18



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Book Policy Manual

Section 3000 Personnel

Title Proposed Revised TECHNICAL ASSISTANTS’ COMPENSATION PLAN

Code po3422.09S

Status

Adopted December 13, 2016

Last Revised December 10, 2019

Last Reviewed January 14, 2020

3422.09S - TECHNICAL ASSISTANTS’ COMPENSATION PLAN
 
Technical Assistants’ Wage Schedule
 
The Board of School Trustees hereby adopts the following wage schedule for Technical Assistants to be effective January 1, 2020.  In
addition, the three percent (3%) employee contribution to PERF will be paid by Elkhart Community Schools.
 

Step ECS Experience as Paraprofessional Hourly Rate
   

1 0 days or more, but less than 55 days (Probationary Rate) 14.24
2 55 days or more, but less than 1 year 14.99
3 1 year or more, but less than 2 years 15.64
4 2 years or more, but less than 3 years 16.38
5 3 years or more 17.33

 

Years regularly employed by Elkhart Community Schools
Amount of

Hourly Career
Increment

  
5 or more, but less than 10 .20
10 or more, but less than 15 .30
15 or more, but less than 20 .40
20 or more, but less than 25 .50
25 or more .60

 
*Step placement shall be determined on verified past experience, but in no case will any new employee be placed higher than Step 4
following the probationary employment period.
 
Additional Course Work Increment
 
A Technical Assistant who completes a forty-five (45) contact hour, pre-approved course related directly to his or her position and receives a
final course grade of C+ or better in graded courses, will receive a 10¢ increase in hourly rate for each such approved course which is
completed, up to a maximum of 30¢ per hour. The request must be submitted to the Director of Human Resources in writing for his/her
approval.
 
Fringe Benefits
 

A. Income Protection and Annuities
 
The Elkhart Community Schools provides the opportunity for regular classified employees to purchase income protection and tax
sheltered annuities. This is done by specifications and through company or broker approved by the Board of Schools Trustees of the
Elkhart Community Schools.
 

B. Insurance
 
In addition to the basic salary schedule, the Elkhart Community Schools contributes toward a policy for each regular classified
employee, working thirty (30) or more hours per week, who is a member of the group hospitalization, major medical and life insurance
program approved by the Board of School Trustees. Eligible employees’ may select one of the plans provided by the Board.
 



The amount of life insurance coverage is an amount equal to the employee’s annual salary or wages rounded up to the next thousand
dollars. The Board will contribute ninety percent (90%) of the premium cost of a group long-term disability insurance policy for
employees who work thirty (30) or more hours per week.
 

C. Severance Benefits
 
Technical Assistants who have completed a minimum of six (6) months of active service with the Elkhart Community Schools will be
eligible for the following benefits upon written resignation received by the Director of Human Resources at least ten (10) working days
prior to the last date of employment.
 

1. Resignation
 
Employees shall be paid for unused personal business leave in the current year of employment at the rate of pay in effect at
termination. The effective date of resignation shall be established to include use of all personal leave.
 

2. Retirement, Death, or Disability
 
The benefits listed below are in addition to those in Technical Assistants’ Fringe Benefits.
 

a. For purposes of this benefit, "retirement" shall be defined as resignation by an employee who at the time of retirement
is age sixty (60) and has ten (10) or more consecutive years of employment in the Elkhart Community Schools or who
is age fifty-five (55) and has fifteen (15) or more consecutive years of employment in Elkhart Community Schools. Only
the six (6) months service requirement must be met to be eligible for the disability or death benefit.
 

b. A maximum of thirty-five (35) accumulated days of unused personal leave will be paid to eligible employees who retire,
die, or become totally permanently disabled while employed by the Elkhart Community Schools. In the event of death,
the benefit shall be paid to the decedent’s estate.
 

c. In addition, employees who are fifty-five (55) years of age or older and have at least fifteen (15) years of service and
who have been insured under the Elkhart Community Schools’ group insurance plan for at least the last five (5) years,
shall be eligible to continue in that program until age sixty-five (65) by paying 100% of the premiums in advance at the
business office.
 

d. When retiring, a Technical Assistant who has ten (10) years of service and is at least fifty-five (55) years of age may
select one of the following benefits based upon the employee’s daily rate at the time of retirement:
 

1. Two (2) days’ pay for each full year employed by the Elkhart Community Schools, or
 

2. At least forty-five percent (45%) of the unused sick leave will be paid, in accordance with the provisions in the
Technical Assistants employee booklet.
 

D. Change in Classification

When any classified employee is employed in another classified employee group, all comparable benefits will remain in effect. Years of
accrued service and accumulated benefit days will continue, subject to Board Policy.

 
Absences
 
When unable to report for work, it is the employee’s responsibility to notify and give the reason for absence to his/her immediate supervisor
as soon as possible. This notice is to be given at least one-half (1/2) hour before the time that the employee regularly reports for work. Upon
return to work, the employee shall file a report of absence. Deductions for absence will be made at the daily rate unless covered by an
absence policy. (No absence report is necessary on emergency closing days when pay is not to be received.)
 
All classified employees employed four (4) or more hours are entitled to certain illness and leave benefits. Absences for all classified
personnel in addition to the days to which they are entitled shall be considered to be unexcused, except those for which prior approval has
been granted. Any absence of an employee may, at the discretion of the employer, be subject to proper and sufficient verification satisfactory
to the employer. Three (3) days’ unexcused absences in any one school year shall be considered excessive and shall be grounds for
suspension or termination. Upon written request received by the appropriate administrator, at least two (2) weeks in advance (except in
emergencies), unpaid absences of five or less consecutive working days may be approved. The best interests of the school corporation will be
considered.
 
Personal Illness/Family Illness Absence
 

A. Full-Time Technical Assistants
 
Full-time Technical Assistants will be allowed the number of hours equal to one workday per month of employment for personal
illness/family illness absence. This will provide ninety-six (96) hours of illness absence annually. Unused personal illness/family illness
absence may accumulate to a total of the number of hours equal to 200 days as personal illness days.



 
B. School-year Technical Assistants

 

1. Regular school-year classified employees will be awarded twelve (12) days of personal illness/family illness leave each calendar
year.
 

2. Any unused hours will accumulate as personal illness absence to a total of the number of hours equal to 120 workdays. Use of
accumulated sick leave by a school-year employee terminates at the close of the school year. It cannot be used again unless
the employee is employed for the following school year or employed at a later date.

The Elkhart Community Schools may request a doctor’s approval to return to work following an illness.
 

 
Family Illness
 
The number of hours equal to two (2) workdays may be used for family illness in the immediate family, two (2) workdays may be used for
either family illness in the immediate family or personal illness, and the balance may be used for personal illness.
 
As used in this section, “immediate family” shall mean employee's spouse, life partner, children, siblings, parents, parents‑in‑law, brother‑ or
sister‑in‑law, son‑ or daughter-in-law, grandparents, grandchildren, great-grandparents, stepparents, stepchildren, or any member of the
family unit living in the employee's household, any person for whom the employee is the legal guardian, or for whom the employee is
exercising rights authorized pursuant to a Power of Attorney. “Life Partner” shall mean an individual whose close association with the
employee is the equivalent of a family relationship. “Family Unit” shall mean any person related to the employee, genetically or by marriage,
or any person for whom the employee is the legal guardian.
 
Job-Related Injury
 
An employee injured in the performance of his or her duties is eligible for Worker's Compensation. The employee is required to complete an
injury report form on the day of the injury and to visit the designated medical facility as directed by the employer. Time required for the
employee to recuperate from any personal injury arising out of and in the course of employment responsibility shall be governed by Indiana
laws regarding Worker's Compensation. Worker's Compensation benefits will begin after seven (7) calendar days at a rate of sixty-six and
two-thirds percent (66-2/3%) of the employee's average wage rate. The employee's share of the health/life insurance premium must be paid
in advance to the Business Office or insurance will be terminated. An employee may receive full pay by using available illness absence,
personal business, and/or vacation benefits.
 
 
Attendance Incentive Program
 
Beginning January 1, 2020, the following attendance incentive program will be effective for all technical assistants. For the purpose of this
program, the year will run from January 1st through December 31st.
 
During the month of January, any technical assistant who has perfect attendance throughout the prior year, other than vacation,
bereavement, or personal leave, shall be paid the sum of $500. Any employee who is absent for any reason for five (5) or less days during
the prior year, other than vacation, bereavement, or personal leave days, shall be paid the sum of $250.
 
Bereavement
 
Each regular classified employee shall be entitled to be absent from work without loss of compensation on account of death in the immediate
family for five (5) business days beyond the date of death. Said days must be used by the employee within twelve (12) months of the death
of the immediate family member, but do not have to be used consecutively.
 
“Immediate family” shall mean employee's spouse, life partner, children, siblings, parents, parents‑in‑law, brother‑ or sister‑in‑law, son‑ or
daughter-in-law, grandparents, grandchildren, great-grandparents, stepparents, stepchildren, or any member of the family unit living in the
employee's household, any person for whom the employee is the legal guardian, or for whom the employee is exercising rights authorized
pursuant to a Power of Attorney.
 
Bereavement leave shall also include a miscarriage or the birth of a stillborn baby and be considered a death within the employee’s
immediate family.
 
Up to one (1) day’s absence shall be granted without loss of compensation to attend the funeral of another relative.
 
When requested, additional bereavement day(s), with or without pay, may be granted by the Superintendent or designee.
 
Military Leave 
 
A leave of absence may be granted by the Board of School Trustees on the recommendation of the Superintendent to any regular employee
who may be required or shall elect to enter the military service. This will permit the employee to return to take a comparable position after
s/he receives an honorable discharge.
 
An employee who, as a reserve member of the armed forces of the United States or of the National Guard, is called on to receive temporary
military training shall be entitled to temporary leave of absence not to exceed fifteen (15) days in any one (1) calendar year. Such absence



shall result in no loss of wages. When the employee has received the military pay he/she shall present the check or a copy of the check to the
payroll office, whereupon a deduction equal to the per diem pay will be made for each day of paid absence from the next payroll check. Upon
return from temporary training or leave, the employee will be restored to a comparable position without loss of vacation, sick leave, or other
benefits of employment.
 
Health Leave
 
Through Board of School Trustees’ action, regular classified employees may be granted a health leave after one (1) year of service. Requests
for health leave by an employee must be submitted in writing and must be supported by a physician’s statement.
 
The Board, after examining medical evidence, may place a regular employee on leave for health reasons if, in its judgment, the physical or
mental health of the employee is interfering with the successful performance of his/her responsibilities.
 
Health leaves may be granted for a maximum period of one (1) year. An employee shall be afforded the opportunity to continue participation
in any insurance program in which s/he is enrolled. Such participation shall be at the employee’s own expense.
 
Through Board of School Trustees’ action regular classified employees may be granted a health leave after one (1) year of service. Requests
for health leave by an employee must be submitted in writing and must be supported by a physician’s statement.
 
The Board of School Trustees, after examining medical evidence, may place a regular employee on leave for health reasons if, in its
judgment, the physical or mental health of the employee is interfering with the successful performance of his/her responsibilities.
 
Health leaves may be granted for a maximum period of one (1) year. An employee shall be afforded the opportunity to continue participation
in any insurance program in which s/he is enrolled. Such participation shall be at the employee’s own expense.
 
Health Leave - Procedure
 
An employee with at least one (1) year’s service, who has used all of his/her personal illness, personal leave, FMLA Leave, and vacation
benefits, may be placed on a health leave.
 

A. After all available benefit days have been exhausted, or
 

B. When a physician’s statement indicating inability to perform regular duties for an extended period of time has been provided, or
 

C. Upon receipt of a request for placement on such leave by the Director of Human Resources from the appropriate administrator.

 
Should the employee fail to provide a requested physician’s statement within thirty (30) days after s/he has used all benefits, it will be
grounds for termination. In addition, the employer may require an employee to have an examination by a physician. The cost of any such
examination will be paid by the employer.
 
In the event an employee is incapacitated, a family member or legal guardian may submit the request for health leave, and any required
documentation.
 
An employee may return from health leave with a physician’s statement indicating the ability to perform the job responsibilities. Employment
will be held for a period of up to one (1) year. After the employee has been on leave for a year, s/he will be eligible for re-employment when
an opening for which s/he is qualified becomes available.
 
Personal Leave
 
Technical Assistants who work a regular workday of four (4) or more hours are entitled to the number of hours equal to three (3) workdays
for absence for personal reasons during each calendar year without loss of pay. If an employee retains all three (3) personal business days at
the end of the year, he/she can roll two (2) of the three (3) days to the following year to equal five (5) personal business days. The
remaining unused personal business day shall accumulate for retirement at the end of the year. In the event the employee intends to use five
(5) consecutive days, the employee must provide thirty (30) calendar days written notice requesting the use of said consecutive days to their
immediate supervisor.
 
If the Technical Assistant does not elect to roll two (2) personal business benefit days into the following year, all unused personal leave will
accumulate for retirement.
 
A personal leave request form shall be completed and submitted to the appropriate administrator to accompany the payroll report for the
period in which the absence occurs.
 
Personal Leave - Procedure
 
Request for personal leave shall be made by completing the classified personal leave request form and giving such form to the employee's
supervisor, or authorized designee, no less than twenty-four (24) hours in advance. In the event of an unforeseen emergency beyond the
control of the employee, which makes it impossible to give the twenty-four (24) hours advance notice, the employee shall notify the employer
as soon as reasonably possible. When such is the case, the written request shall be completed no later than the first day of return from the
absence.
 



Except for emergencies, personal business hours shall not be used for the sole purpose of extending the school vacation periods of
Thanksgiving, Winter Recess, Spring Break or Summer Break, or the day preceding fall recess in the event that day is scheduled as a parent
teacher conference day, as defined by the school calendar, unless the employee complies with the following procedure:
 

A. Once every three (3) years, an employee may use personal business hours to extend a holiday or vacation period described above by
exchanging two personal business hours for each personal business hour taken adjacent to the holiday or vacation period.
 

B. The employee must give notice, in writing, to the Office of the Superintendent ten (10) working days in advance of taking said day.
 

C. All emergency requests for personal business immediately preceding or immediately following vacation periods shall be granted only
upon approval of the Superintendent or designee. For the purpose of determining when an emergency exists, "emergency" shall be
defined as an unforeseen event that prohibits the employee from attending to his/her assigned duties.

 
Jury and Witness Duty Pay
 
Jury Duty
 
All Technical Assistants will be granted excused absence when they are subpoenaed to serve on the jury. Such absence shall result in no loss
of wages. When the employee has received her/his jury duty check, the check or copy of the check shall be presented to the payroll office,
whereupon a deduction equal to jury duty pay will be made from the next payroll check.
 
Witness Duty
 
In the event an employee is subpoenaed to serve as a witness, except in cases noted below, and gives testimony before a court of law or
governmental administrative agency, the employee shall be granted absence to witness for the time during the working day which the
employee is required to be present. Such absence, up to three (3) days for any one case, shall result in no loss of wages. For cases involving
extended absence to witness, the superintendent may grant additional days with pay, with substitute deduction where applicable, or without
pay. When the employee is in receipt of his/her witness duty check, a copy of the check shall be presented to the payroll office, whereupon a
deduction equal to witness duty pay will be made from the next payroll check. The employee will not be paid when such testimony is given in
any employee relations related litigation involving the employer or any other school employer, unless the employer subpoenas the employee
to testify.
 
Parental Leave
 
A leave, without pay, may be granted to any expectant parent upon written request of the employee to the Director of Human Resources. In
the event that the employee is pregnant, the leave may be requested to begin any time between thirty (30) days after the Director of Human
Resources is notified of the pregnancy and thirty (30) days after the birth of the child. For employees who are not pregnant, the leave may be
requested to begin any time within thirty (30) days of the date that the child is expected in the home. In cases of emergency the thirty (30)
day notification period may be waived. Leaves may be requested for a period not to exceed one (1) year, and are non-renewable.
 
The staff member shall return to the first position which becomes available for which s/he is qualified, as determined by the employer, or
waive any right to re-employment. For the period of the leave, a staff member may continue in any group insurance program for which s/he
is eligible, at his/her own expense, by paying the full cost of premiums in advance at the Business Office.
 
Adoptive Leave
 
An employee who legally adopts a child whose age is less than six (6) years old shall be entitled to use family illness leave days to serve as
the primary caregiver for the adoptive child. In order to be eligible for paid adoptive leave the employee must notify the Director of Human
Resources and the employee’s immediate supervisor of the request for adoptive leave upon acceptance of the application for adoption. All
such leaves shall commence on the date that the child is physically turned over to the employee for the employee’s care and legal custody.
 
Holidays and Vacations
 
 
 

A. Definitions
 

1. As used in this policy, the term "full-time employee" means an employee who is employed on a twelve-month basis and who
has a regular workday of four (4) or more hours.
 

2. As used in this policy, the term "school-year employee" means an employee who is employed on a school-year basis and works
approximately one hundred seventy-five (175) or more days per year, and who has a regular workday of four (4) or more
hours.
 

B. Holidays
 
In order to receive holiday pay, an employee must be in an active pay status on the day before and after the holiday.
 



 
Full-time Technical Assistants shall be paid for the following holidays, when they occur on days which would have been worked if it
were not for that special day, subject to the provisions below:
 

1. New Year’s - two (2) days
 

2. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day
 

3. Presidents Day
 

4. Memorial Day
 

5. Independence Day - two (2) days
 

6. Labor Day
 

7. Thanksgiving Day – two (2) days
 

8. Christmas Day - two (2) days
 

C. During the winter break (when schools are closed) four (4) days will be allowed as follows:
 

1. When January 1 and December 25 fall on a weekday, they shall be paid holidays, and a classified employee may, subject to
approval of the immediate supervisor, select either but not both December 24 or December 26 as a holiday with pay, and may,
subject to approval of the immediate supervisor, select either but not both December 31 or January 2 as a holiday with pay. To
be eligible for either of the above selections, a classified employee must make such request to the immediate supervisor no
later than December 10.
 

2. When January 1 and December 25 fall on a weekend, then both the Friday before and the Monday after shall be paid holidays,
unless schools are open on one of these days, in which case an alternate day will be determined.
 

3. When any holiday is celebrated on a weekend, it will be a paid holiday on the Friday preceding or the Monday following, unless
school is in session.
 

4. Thanksgiving Day and the day following will be paid holidays.
 

5. Presidents’ Day will be a paid holiday.
 

D. Technical Assistants shall be paid for the following holidays when they occur on days which they would have worked if it were not for
that special day, subject to the provisions above:
 

1. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day
 

2. Presidents Day
 

3. Memorial Day
 

4. Labor Day
 

5. Thanksgiving Day and the following Friday (two (2) days)
 

6. Christmas Day - (if celebrated on a weekend, it will be a paid holiday on the Friday preceding or the Monday following)

 
Vacations
 

A. A full-time employee who has, as of December 31, been employed by the Elkhart Community Schools for less than one (1) calendar
year, shall be entitled to one (1) working day vacation with pay during the next calendar year, for each full month of employment
completed, provided that no more than ten (10) vacation days may be accrued.
 

B. A full-time employee who has, as of December 31 of each year, been employed by the Elkhart Community Schools for that entire
calendar year, shall be entitled to ten (10) working days vacation with pay during the next calendar year.
 

C. A full-time employee who has, as of December 31 of each year, been employed by the Elkhart Community Schools for six (6)
consecutive years, is entitled to fifteen (15) working days vacation with pay during the next calendar year.
 

D. A full-time employee who has, as of December 31 of each year, been employed by the Elkhart Community Schools for fifteen (15)
consecutive years, is entitled to twenty (20) working days vacation with pay during the next calendar year.



 
E. Years shall be considered "consecutive" so long as any interruption of service did not include other employment.

 
F. For the sole purpose of determining vacation benefit eligibility; employees who transfer from a school-year position to a twelve (12)

month position will be granted years of service based on the following conversion formula. NOTE: the years of service conversion is
only applicable for the purpose of vacation benefits. This computation does not replace the total years of service invested with
Elkhart Community Schools for the purposes of Retirement benefits or Staff Recognition.
 
The employee’s employment record with Elkhart Community Schools for all positions held will be considered. Using the number of paid
hours per day, multiplied by the number of paid days per school year, divided by 2080 to obtain the number of years equivalent to a
twelve (12) month position. The total number of equivalent years will be rounded up to nearest whole number.
 
The calculated number of years of service will be used in determining the total number of day’s vacation which such full-time
employee is entitled to receive under this policy. The employee will receive the total amount of awarded vacation days effective the
January following their date of conversion. Prior to completing one full year of service, the employee will be entitled to a prorated
amount of vacation days based on the calculation formula referenced in the paragraph above.
 

G. Dates requested for use as vacation days shall be submitted to the immediate supervisor prior to the first day of requested vacation,
and shall be subject to the approval of the immediate supervisor.
 

H. Vacation days will be available to the staff member during the twelve (12) months of the calendar year and for six (6) months beyond.

 
Revised 1/1/17
Revised 12/12/17
Revised 12/18/18



Date: 1/8/2020  
 
To: Steve Thalheimer, Superintendent  

Board of School Trustees  
 
From: Wes Molyneaux, Calendar Committee Chair  

Calendar Committee Members  
 
Re: Approval of 2020-2021 School Year Calendar  
 
 
The Calendar Committee is ready for the Board to consider the 2020-2021 school year 
calendar. There have been a number of changes to the calendar this year. This memo and the 
attached draft calendar outline those changes and the committee’s reasons for making them. 
The calendar draft was discussed at PRG during the December and January meetings and 
shared with all members of the administration leadership team and ETA.  
 
Inclement weather cancellations  
The committee discussed the possibility of having anywhere between zero and five built-in 
inclement weather make-up days. The committee chose to have three built in days in the 
2020-2021 calendar. Based on the feedback from the staff survey, conversations with parents 
and discussion among the leadership team and the school board, the decision has also been 
made to use eLearning after the three built-in inclement weather make-up days are used. This 
means the final day of the school year will be Wednesday June 2, 2021 regardless of how many 
cancellations there are. District leadership wants to make it clear to all employees that there will 
be no loss of payment or hours because of inclement weather eLearning days. Supervisors will 
provide information to employees explaining how these hours will be made up. 
 
Plan for scheduled eLearning days 
It is important that all employees know that a scheduled eLearning day for students means a full 
work day for them. The Calendar Committee, School Board, and district leadership want to 
make it clear that all employee groups will be able to work their normal hours and expect normal 
pay. 
 
The time during the scheduled eLearning day will be used for curriculum writing, collaborative 
team time to address the four questions of the PLC process, and provide targeted professional 
development for all employees. For classroom teachers, the majority of these three days will be 
spent working in their buildings with their collaborative teams to develop curriculum and work 
through the PLC process.  
 
Second semester parent teacher conferences  
Based on the feedback from the staff survey, conversations with parents and discussion among 
the leadership team and the school board, the decision has been made to remove second 



semester conferences. The committee decided to move this non-student attendance work day 
to the beginning of the school year. This means teachers will have three paid work days at the 
start of the year to prepare for the first day of school. In addition, by removing the non-student 
attendance day from the month of February, the committee scheduled a non-work day on the 
Friday before Presidents’ Day returning it to a four day weekend. 
 
While the committee understands some teachers may be disappointed that second semester 
conferences were removed at the elementary level, teachers needing to schedule a parent 
conference or hold IEP meetings will be able to do so during the March 3, 2021 scheduled 
eLearning day. 
 
Spring Break 
With the decision to have three built in make-up days, the Calendar Committee decided to 
schedule a day off on the Friday before Spring Break.  
 
Parent Teacher Conferences  
The committee decided to utilize an eLearning day during parent-teacher conferences in the fall 
to help increase the number of conference slots and provide additional teacher collaboration 
time. Conferences will be held on the night of Monday October 19th, the night of October 20th 
and the morning of October 21st. The additional appointment slots on Wednesday October 21st 
will allow parents working second and third shift jobs more options to attend parent-teacher 
conferences. These additional slots will also allow teachers who have children enrolled in 
Elkhart Schools additional time to meet face to face with their teachers. With late nights on 
October 19th and 20th the Calendar Committee also concluded that employees would 
appreciate a normal endtime to the workday on Wednesday, October 21st, as they enter fall 
break. The additional time on the eLearning day will be used for curriculum development and 
the four questions of the PLC process.  
 
 
 











2019-2020 Spring Teaching Grant Summary

Applicant Point Person School Name Project Title Grade(s) Subject

Number of 
Students 
Impacted 

Amount 
Requeste
d Abstract Notes Amount Awarded

Justin Higgins Riverview
Banking for 
Biztown 5th grade

Math, Social 
Studies 60 $900

Banking for Biztown will give Riverview 5th graders an interactive 
opportunity to participate in a field trip to Biztown in Fort Wayne, IN. This 
field trip will give students the opportunity to work as an employee and shop 
as a consumer. Besides going on a simulation field trip, students will gain 
necessary life and financial skills to help them budget, bank, make smart 
purchases, and save money as well as learn soft skills businesses are 
looking for. 

The committee has decided to award 
80% of field trip requests in an effort 
to make sure students/families 
participate in the cost in some small 
way.  There is a bit of padding worked 
into the budget for students who can't 
afford to pay anything. $750

Sarah Collins 
Roosevelt STEAM 
Academy One Voice 2nd 

ELL/General 
education 5 $229.99

At Roosevelt, around 50% of our students come from non-English speaking 
homes. Of those, many are level 1 ELL speakers who speak little to no 
English at all. Many level 1 ELL students have been through great hardships 
and uncertainty on their journey to Elkhart. Once here, it is difficult to fathom 
the fear and culture shock that these students face in a new country with 
little to no means to communicate with adults and peers. No way to 
understand lessons being taught in depth, no way to ask questions, and no 
way to communicate regarding important needs—including hunger, illness, 
or bullying. How amazing would it be if, as teachers, we could help meet the 
needs of these students and enrich their educational experience? 

With new technology—a WT2 Language Translator—some schools are 
already doing so. The translator allows for real-time two way translation 
between devices and those wearing them. These students deserve to have 
their voices heard, and this device can allow that to happen. Approved for full funding $229.99

Paige Walters

Assistive 
Technology 
Department

LAMP Lending 
Library

Pre-school to 
Young Adult 
Program

Functional 
Communication 25 778.58

The LAMP Lending Library will be used by Speech Language Pathologists 
(SLPs) in planning and implementing a functional communication home 
program with students who are using LAMP (Language Acquisition through 
Motor Planning). The district currently has 25 students using LAMP devices. 
This communication system is for students who have complex 
communication needs and may be the primary way a student communicates 
with their teachers, family, and peers. The LAMP Lending Library through 
the Assistive Tech department will offer a variety of premade materials in 
learning kits. The SLPs will introduce the kit lessons to the students and the 
same lessons will be sent home for family fun and interactions. Parents will 
learn how to use the device and model communication through a child 
directed approach. Since LAMP has been introduced in our district, the 
missing component has been parent and family learning opportunities. Our 
goal is to bridge the gap between school and home communication. Approved for full funding $778.58

Sarah Parcell 
Elkhart Memorial 
High School Dare to Dream 9-12

FACS- Fashion 
Design 150 $1,000

The grant would provide Memorial students with the opportunity to take 
Fashion 2 classes after over two years of not having any class beyond the 
Introductory Fashion Class. Being able to obtain the materials needed for 
the school to provide students the option to take fashion classes and 
minimize the cost from our students’ pockets. The cost to expand the 
existing program is $1000, making it possible to meet the goal of daring our 
students to dream and dream big at that. Through the department's short 
term goal of providing more students with an opportunity to engage in the 
fashion industry at the high school level and meet the school's long term 
goal of setting up the students for Elkhart High School with successful post 
secondary education employment or furthering education in their field of 
interest. The 2020 Semester currently has 36 students signed up for the 
Advanced Level Class, with our numbers sure to grow in the future, 
especially with the new pathways to graduate. See below.

Approved for full funding. We are 
requesting that they put on a fashion 
show where they present their 
resumes and fashion portfolios. $1,000

Jessica Kain West Side

West Side 
Alternative 
Class Setup 7-8

West Side 
Alternative (ALL 
Subjects) 100 $5,000

The three middle schools are now housing their alternative programs within 
their buildings.  In an effort to create an environment where reluctant or 
hesitant learners feel safe and ready to tackle their education we are asking 
for your help.  Our alternative classroom will be a place where students can 
have their needs met  without the fear of a large classroom.  We are using 
this as a behavior intervention with restorative practices to make ALL of our 
students successful.  It is our mission to be ALL IN!    The funds could be 
used to create and implement a plan for these students with activities and 
materials to make these students successful in the school setting.  This 
room would be used to calm and get the students refocused and ready for 
the day.

Everything in this grant request is 
mobile and able to be used in any 
number of spaces. They reduced their 
request by $1500 and at least $500 
worth of items can be moved from the 
warehouse for their use. We 
recommend funding it at the $3000 
level. $3,000

Heather Cash Pinewood
Wiggle Stools 
for Classroom 2 General Education 26 $1,360.78

I would like to purchase 24 wiggle stools for the students in my classroom to 
use as alternative seating.  A large percentage of my students are very 
kinesthetic.  They like movement.  Sitting still in a regular chair is difficult for 
them.  

We no longer fund alternative seating 
requests 0



2019-2020 Spring Teaching Grant Summary

Applicant Point Person School Name Project Title Grade(s) Subject

Number of 
Students 
Impacted 

Amount 
Requeste
d Abstract Notes Amount Awarded

Kris Weimer Osolo

Portable 
Sensory Path 
Tarps K-6

motor skills / self-
regulation 450 $3,500

Osolo would like to have four sensory pathways printed on heavy weight 25' 
x 25' floor tarps. These tarps could be utilized in any open classroom, 
hallway, gym, or even the cafeteria, depending on available areas. The tarps 
would each be uniquely designed to provide all of our students the 
opportunity to develop their motor skills, including balance, jumping, and 
cross body movements as well as hand-eye coordination and spatial 
awareness. We anticipate providing homeroom teaches the opportunity to 
bring all or part of their class to the sensory room to provide much needed 
brain breaks and mental resets on a daily basis. Using floor tarps printed 
with pathways instead of decals, which are permanently affixed to a hard 
surface, we would have the flexibility of moving the path from from location 
to another, including both hard and carpeted surfaces, as necessary 
throughout the year as well as from year to year. 

Approved for full funding.  The 
commtitee is interested in seeing the 
art design and data about usage. $3,450

Tracey Kizyma
Mary Beck 
Elementary Sub Tubs! K-6 All 240 $720.00

Filling substitute teaching positions is a challenge! A Sub Tub is a bin of 
resources that substitute teachers will pick up when they sign in at Beck. 
Many of the items will remain constant in the tub, and some will need to be 
refilled after it is returned. It will contain laminated quick reference resource 
cards on a binder ring (school map, emergency plan, phone numbers, calm 
down strategies, brain break strategies, school schedule, etc.). The tub will 
also contain materials to support our PRIDE/PBIS initiative, along with a 
couple personalized items to assist the guest teacher in feeling energized 
and appreciated throughout the day. 

The overall goal is to ensure the guest teacher feels valued and supported 
so that they return to Beck and continue to fill our posted absences.  
Currently, we are combining classes or pulling paraprofessionals to fill 
vacancies.  This creates a domino effect of challenges in our scheduling, 
and ultimately affects our students and their learning.  

The committe is especially interested 
in the return rate of subs, does their 
percentage of unflilled sub positions 
go down? Also we encourage them to 
experiment with different incentives to 
see what works best.  Creative ideas 
to recruit subs to their building in a 
shortage. $720

$9,929



What is the 

title of the 

grant?

What is the 

name of the 

granting 

agency/

entity?

Please list 

school/entity 

applying.

Individual/

contact applying 

for the grant?

What is the 

amount

applied for?

How will the grant funds be used 

and who will oversee the 

management of the grant?

Please explain how the grant funds will be 

used to support the district vision, focus, and 

goals. 

Please outline the grant budget for 

the funds requested.

What is the 

grant submission 

deadline?

Focus on 

Inclusion 

Application

AWS 

Foundation

Daly Elementary Elizabeth Wilson Amount to cover 

3 hotel rooms 

for 2 nights and 

registration fee 

for 6 individuals 

to attend 

conference - 

$2,850.00

It will allow us to attend the Focus 

on Inclusion conference and 

Elizabeth Wilson will oversee the 

management.

The grant will allow us to attend the conference 

where we will gain knowledge on behavioral 

support, specially designed instruction, 

meeting needs of a special education student 

and much more.

It will fund 3 hotel rooms for 2 nights and 

registration fees for 6 people (administrator, 

2 gen ed teachers, 3 special education 

teachers)

11/22/2019

Page 1 of 1 1/14/20 Board Meeting









 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Steven Thalheimer 

From:  Ms. Cheryl Waggoner 

Date:  January 14, 2020 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff for employment in the 

2019-20 school year: 

 

Aaron Elias    Pierre Moran/Language Arts 

 

Dustin Fairchild   West Side/Computer Technology 

 

Rebecca Herington   Woodland/Grade 6 

 

Steven Robinson   Hawthorne/Special Education Intern 

 

 

b. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following employees: 

 

Elaine Jarvis  PACE/Special Education  28 Years of Service 

 

Robin Sutton  Woodland/Special Education  20 Years of Service 

 

 

c. Maternity Leave – We recommend a maternity leave for the following employee: 

 

Kristina O’Donnell   West Side/Language Arts 

Begin:  1/13/20    End: 1/17/20 

 

 

d. Personal Leave – We recommend a personal leave for the following employee: 

 

Elizabeth Keiling   Beck/Grade 4 

Begin:  8/10/20    End:  6/2/21 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

CLASSIFIED 

 

a. New Hires – We recommend regular employment of the following classified employees: 

 

Leann Buss    Memorial/Food Service 

Began: 10/30/19   PE: 1/8/20 

 

Debra Cook    Pierre Moran/Food Service 

Began: 11/5/19    PE: 1/14/20 

 

Ashley Fehlberg   Eastwood/Social Worker 

Began: 10/29/19   PE: 1/7/20 

 

Clacy Heston    West Side/Paraprofessional 

Began: 11/4/19    PE: 1/13/20 

 

Demia Johnson   West Side/Food Service 

Began: 10/29/19   PE: 1/7/20 

 

Sharron Lewis    Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 11/4/19    PE: 1/13/20 

 

Jeanette Martin   Riverview/Food Service 

Began: 10/31/19   PE: 1/9/20 

 

Eduardo Morales Cardenas  Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 10/29/19   PE: 1/7/20 

 

Sarah Nelson    Education Services Center/Secretary 

Began: 11/6/19    PE: 12/31/19 

 

Derria Pratcher   Memorial/Paraprofessional 

Began: 11/4/19    PE: 1/13/20 

 

Gayle Sotelo-Martin   Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 10/30/19   PE: 1/8/20 

 

Tynetta Warren   Beardsley/Cleveland/Food Service 

Began: 11/4/19    PE: 1/13/20 

     

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

b. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following classified employees: 

 

Christine Banta   Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 11/1/18    Resign: 1/6/20 

 

Kayla Brookshire   Memorial/Paraprofessional 

Began: 2/11/19    Resign: 12/13/19 

 

Debra Cook    Pierre Moran/Food Service 

Began: 11/5/19    Resign: 1/17/20 

 

Megan Haas    Daly/Secretary 

Began: 10/20/14   Resign: 12/12/19 

 

Beverly Harris    Cleveland/Paraprofessional 

Began: 9/8/17    Resign: 1/6/20 

 

Donna Johnson   Riverview/Paraprofessional 

Began: 9/11/13    Resign: 1/31/20 

 

Matthew Manley   Memorial/Paraprofessional 

Began: 4/8/19    Resign: 12/20/19 

 

Melisa Machowiak   Eastwood/Paraprofessional 

Began: 3/25/19    Resign: 12/30/19 

 

LeAnn Mehl    Daly/Food Service 

Began: 1/11/16    Resign: 1/17/20 

 

Cathaleen Phillipson   North Side/Food Service 

Began: 9/16/19    Resign: 1/6/20 

 

Vanessa Scott    WVPE/Secretary 

Began: 3/2/15    Resign: 4/3/20 

 

Jena Swain    Pierre Moran/Technical Assistant 

Began: 8/27/19    Resign: 1/6/20 

 

Zachary Wilfert Tech Services/Deployment Administrator 

Began: 8/3/15 Resign: 1/2/20  

 

 

 

 



 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

c. Unpaid Leave Request - We recommend an unpaid leave for the following employees: 

 

Sarah Drabyn    Cleveland/Therapist 

Begin: 1/31/20    End: 6/3/20 

 

Yvonne Gefri    North Side/Food Service 

Began: 8/12/19    End: 1/17/20 

Lavinia Jones-Goodman  Cleveland/Secretary 

Began: 8/26/19    End: 1/31/20 

 

Kayla Magyar    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 1/21/20    End: 6/3/20 

 

Elsa Verde Zamudio   Career Center/Paraprofessional 

Began: 12/6/19    End: 3/2/20 

 

 

 


	Agenda - Organizational Meeting 2020
	Conflicts of Interest
	Resolution for BST Org
	Agenda - Board of Finance 2020
	Board of Finance 1
	Board of Finance 2
	Board of Finance 3
	Board of Finance 4
	Agenda - January 14, 2020
	Minutes - Business Meeting  - December 17 2019
	Gift Acceptance - ElkLogics
	Gift Acceptance - ETI
	Gift Acceptance - Food Service
	Gift Acceptance - MHS Music
	Gift Acceptance - MHS
	Gift Acceptance - Osolo
	Fundraisers
	Board Policy 3422.07S
	Board Policy 3422.06S
	Board Policy 3422.08S
	Board Policy 3422.09S
	Memo re 2020-2021 Calendar
	2020-2021 ECS Calendar - DRAFT
	New Course Offerings
	Grant Acceptance EEF 2019-2020 Spring Teaching Grants
	Grant Submission
	Conference Leave Requests
	Conference Leaves - Perkins
	Personnel Report

